
 County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 276133 

Please ask for Mike Bradbury 
Email: michael.bradbury@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 
 
Pensions Panel 
 
Tuesday, 2 December 2014 
9.30 am 

Ivanovo Room - County Buildings 

 
John Tradewell 

Interim Chief Executive  
24 November 2014 

 

 
A G E N D A

   
   
1. Apologies  
   
2. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16.5  
   
3. Minutes of meeting held on 9 September 2014 (Pages 1 - 4) 
   
4. Pension Fund  Investments as at 30 September 2014 (Pages 5 - 32) 
   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 

 
 

5. Dates of Future Meetings  
   
 3 March 2015  

16 March 2015 (Special Meeting) 
 
(To be confirmed) 
9 June 2015 
21 July 2015 
8 September 2015 
1 December 2015 
1 March 2016 

 
All meetings are scheduled to start at 9.30 am at County Buildings, 
Stafford 

 

   
6. Exclusion of the Public  
   
 The Chairman to move:- 

 
‘That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) indicated below’. 

 

   
 



 PART TWO  
   
 (All reports in this section are on pink paper)  
   
7. Exempt Minutes of Meeting held on 9 September 2014 (exemption 

paragraph 3) 
(Pages 33 - 42) 

   
8. Property - Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance 

and Resources (exemption Paragraph 3) 
(Pages 43 - 44) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
9. Private Equity - Review of position at 30 September 2014 

(exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 45 - 46) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
10. Strategic Benchmark Review and Monitoring (exemption 

Paragraph 3) 
 

   
a) Economic and Market Update (Pages 47 - 52) 
   
 Report and presentation by Hymans Robertson  
   
b) Review of Position as at 31 October 2014 (Pages 53 - 62) 
   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 

 
(Report of Record Currency Management for the month ended 31 
October 2014 enclosed for information) 

 

   
11. Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the 

quarter ended  30 September 2014 (exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 63 - 112) 

   
 (Report of Portfolio Evaluation for the quarter ended 30 September 

2014 enclosed for information)  
 

   
12. Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment 

Report Quarter 2 2014 (exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 113 - 132) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
13. UK Equity Benchmarks (exemption paragraph 3)  
   
 Presentation by Hymans Robertson  
   
14. Manager Presentation (exemption paragraph 3)  
   
 To receive a presentation from Standard Life Investments on the performance 

of the Fund’s UK Equity portfolio. 
 
(Report of Standard Life Investments for the quarter ended 30 September 
2014 enclosed for information) 

 

 

   



 
 

Membership 
 

Philip Atkins (Chairman) 
Carolan Dobson 
Graeme Johnston 
David Thomas 
 

Stephen Sweeney 
Derek Davis, OBE 
Shelagh McKiernan 
Robert Marshall 
 

 
Note for Members of the Press and Public 
 
Filming of Meetings 
 
The Open (public) section of this meeting may be filmed for live or later broadcasting or 
other use, and, if you are at the meeting, you may be filmed, and are deemed to have 
agreed to being filmed and to the use of the recording for broadcast and/or other 
purposes. 
 
Recording by Press and Public 
 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is permitted 
from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the chairman, disrupt 
the meeting.  
 
 
 





- 1 -

Minutes of the Pensions Panel Meeting held on 9 September 2014

Present: Philip Atkins (Chairman)

Attendance

Stephen Sweeney
Derek Davis, OBE

Shelagh McKiernan
Robert Marshall

Also in attendance: Carolan Dobson (Independent Advisor), Graeme Johnston 
(Hymans Robertson) and David Thomas (Independent Advisor)

PART ONE

8. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

9. Minutes of meetings held on 20 May and  15 and 29 July 2014

RESOLVED – That the minutes of Meetings of the Pensions Panel held on 20 May 15 
July and 29 July 2014 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

10. Pension Fund Performance and Portfolio of Investments as at 30 June 2014

The Director of Finance and Resources submitted a summary of the performance of the 
Pension Fund together with a portfolio of the Fund’s investments as at 30 June 2014.

The Staffordshire Pension Fund had positive performance in Quarter 2 2014 with a 
return of 2.0%. This was marginally below the Fund’s benchmark return for the quarter 
of 2.2%. 

The Director of Finance and Resources detailed various factors affecting the 
performance of the Fund including the conflict in the Ukraine as a result of the Russian 
annexation of Crimea which had led to sanctions being imposed on Russia; and the 
eruption of violence in the Middle East which had caused the price of oil to spike.

Over the longer term the Fund had outperformed its benchmark in both the one, three 
and five year periods with returns in excess of 9.0% per annum. At, £3.36 billion, the 
market value of the Fund at 30 June 2014 was the highest market value of the Fund 
reported to date.

RESOLVED – That the Pension Fund performance and portfolio of investments for the 
quarter ended 30 June 2014 be noted. 

11. Dates of Future Meetings



- 2 -

2 December 2014
3 March 2015
9 June 2015
21 July 2015 (Managers’ Day)
8 September 2015
1 December 2015
1 March 2016

All meetings are scheduled to start at 9.30am at County Buildings, Stafford. 

12. Exclusion of the Public

RESOLVED -, That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraph of Part One of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) indicated below.

The Panel then proceeded to consider reports on the following issues:

13. Exempt Minutes of meetings held on 20 May and 15 and 29 July 2014 
(exemption paragraph 3)

(i) 20 May 2014
(ii) 15 July 2014 
(iii) 29 July 2014  

14. Property-Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance and 
Resources in relation to Property (Exemption Paragraph 3)

15. Stock Lending (exemption paragraph 3)

16. Equity Transition Summary (exemption paragraph 3)

17. Strategic Benchmark Review and Monitoring (Exemption Paragraph 3)

(a) Economic and Market Update 

(b) Review of Position as at 31 July 2014 

18. Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the quarter ended  
30 June 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)

19. Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment Report Quarter 
1 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)

20. Private Equity (exemption paragraph 3)



- 3 -

a) Private Equity Valuations as at 31 March 2014 

b) Review of Position as at 30 June 2014 

c) Private Equity Investment 

The following presentation was also given to provide information on Private Equity 
Investment followed and on the performance of the Fund’s Private Equity portfolio:

21. Private Equity Training and Manager Presentation (exemption paragraph 3)

Chairman



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

Item no 4 on Agenda

Local Members Interest

PENSIONS PANEL – 2 DECEMBER 2014

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS 2014/15 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide, for information, a portfolio of the Pension Fund’s investments as 
at 30 September 2014.

2. Financial Market Background

2.1 Global equities were broadly positive over the quarter, the MSCI
World and MSCI All Countries World Indices rose +0.82% and +0.79% in local 
currency terms. Sentiment was driven by ongoing central bank policy support 
and improving US economic data.

2.2 During the quarter, the Federal Reserve cut its bond-buying programme down 
to $15 billion a month and indicated Quantitative Easing (QE) would end in 
October. Fed officials reiterated their commitment to keep interest rates near 
zero for a “considerable time” after QE ends. The European Central Bank was 
also active. In an effort to counter poor growth and deflation worries they cut 
the benchmark interest rate to 0.05% and introduced new stimulus measures.

2.3 The US saw an expected rebound in GDP growth when a Q2 figure of 4.6% 
(annualised) was released during Q3. Post quarter end the first estimate of 
Q3 growth was released at 3.5%, meaning the US is in line for healthy annual 
growth in 2014. Other US economic data has also remained robust, with 
unemployment falling to 5.9% in September, the first reading below 6% since 
the summer of 2008.

2.4 The UK continued to produce the best economic performance in Europe, 
despite slowing from the very strong levels of the first half of the year. Q3 
GDP growth was recently released at 0.7%, which is down slightly on the 
0.9% Q2 GDP figure. The biggest issue affecting the UK economy during Q3 
was the Scottish independence referendum which caused market volatility, as 
the chance of the UK breaking up seemed to increase in the run up to the 
vote.

2.5 In other markets, China seems to be on a continuing path to lower levels of 
growth. In particular, there was a considerable drop in lending and money 
supply growth in Q3. Japan also struggled during the third quarter as a series 
of weak economic data releases showed the country has yet to fully rebound 



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

from the sales tax hike in April. This meant the Japanese economy contracted 
by 1.6% in Q3 and entered a technical recession.

3. Fund Value

3.1 At £3.45 billion, the market value of the Fund at 30 September 2014 is the 
highest market value of the Fund reported to date. Markets reacted 
dramatically in mid-October, to the reignited fears about the slowdown in the 
global economy, particularly the almost certain deflation in the Eurozone and 
the thought of a potential recession in Germany. On 15 October 2014, this, 
together with heightened fears about the spread of the Ebola virus caused 
global stock markets to plummet. Fortunately, markets have recovered again 
since then and the latest estimated valuation of the Fund, as at 21 November 
2014, sees the Fund back to its 30 September value.   

4. Funding Level

4.1 It is pleasing to report that the Actuary has recently indicated that the funding 
level of the Fund has improved, since the actuarial valuation in March 2013, 
substantially as a result of the performance of investments, which is reflected 
in the highest ever level of Fund assets referred to above.

4.2 The Actuary has also shown that on a ‘like for like’ comparison with 87 other 
Local Authority Pension Funds, Staffordshire’s funding level is above average. 

4.3 Finally the Actuary has concluded that taking into account the;
  funding level,  level of contribution rates, and  relative maturity of the Fund, 

Staffordshire’s position is very strong relative to 87 other Local Authority 
Funds. 

5. Portfolio of Investments at 30 September 2014

5.1 A copy of the Staffordshire Pension Fund’s portfolio of investments as at 30 
September 2014 is attached. 

Andrew Burns
Director of Finance and Resources

___________________________________________________________________

Contact : Melanie Stokes
Telephone No. (01785) 276330

Background Documents:
Portfolio Evaluation Performance Measurement Data























































- 1 -

Exempt Minutes of the Pensions Panel Meeting held on 9 September 2014

PART TWO

13. Exempt Minutes of meetings held on 20 May and 15 and 29 July 2014 
(exemption paragraph 3)

The exempt minutes of the meetings of the Pensions Panel held on 20 May, 15 July and 
29 July 2014 were circulated.  

RESOLVED – That the exempt minutes of the meetings of the Pensions Panel held on 
20 May, 15 July and 29 July 2014 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

14. Property - Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance and 
Resources in relation to Property (Exemption Paragraph 3)

The Director of Finance and Resources reported on the following property matters 
approved by him in consultation with the Chairman:

(a) Purchase of Old Exchange Buildings, King Street, Manchester

The purchase of a freehold retail investment known as Old Exchange Buildings, King 
Street, Manchester, for a sum of £6.3m.

(b) A lease of Unit 12 (Ground Floor), Oasis Business Park, Eynsham, for a period of 5 
years, at a rent of £17,926 per annum. Three months rent free, followed by a 50% rent 
reduction for three months was agreed as a letting incentive. (Tenant: Adler and Allan 
Ltd).

(c) The rent review of 2��2�� Market Place, Kingston upon Thames, due on 16 March 
2012 be recorded at £������� per annum. An increase of 12% over the passing rent of 
£�2����� per annum. (Tenant: Links of London).

(d) The rent review of the Fourth Floor, Burwood H	
��� Caxton Street, London, due on 
28 November 2013 be recorded at £������ per annum. An increase of 7.8% over the 
passing rent of £������� per annum. (Tenant: Sport & Recreation Alliance).

(e) A short term letting of Unit 2, 264-265 Oxford Street, Swansea, for a period of 12 
months at a rent of ££����� per calendar month inclusive of service charge and 
insurance (but excluding business rates). (Tenant: Nexphase Limited).

(f) The rent review of Unit P Centurion Park, Southampton, due on 11 February 2014 be 
recorded at NIL increase. The rent remains at £������� per annum. (Tenant: The Post 
Office).

(g) The re-gear of the lease of Units 1 and 2, 5-7 Queen Street, Cardiff. The current 
lease, due to expire on 24 April 2021 was extended by a term of 10 years to expire 24 
April 2031 �
s���� to additional upward only open market rent reviews in 2023 and 2028. 
The rent remained at £������� per annum although an 18 month rent free period had 



- 2 -

been granted as an incentive to the letting together with approval for limited structural 
alterations. (Tenant: Santander UK PLC).

(h) A lease of the 3rd Floor (North) at 22 Stukeley Street, London WC2 for a period of 5 
years at a rent of �������� per annum. 5 months rent free with a further 3 months rent 
free in the event the break option is not exercised at the end of the third year was 
agreed as a letting incentive. (Tenant: BTG Global Risk Partners).

The Director of Finance and Resources also reported that there was likely to be a need 
to call an additional meeting of the Panel in early Spring 2015 to consider the 
appointment of the Fund’s Property Manager.

RESOLVED � That the action taken by the Director of Finance and Resources in 
relation to the purchase of Old Exchange Buildings, King Street, Manchester be 
confirmed and his actions in relation to (b) � (h) above be noted.

15. Stock Lending (exemption paragraph 3)

The Director of Finance and Resources summarised the Fund’s involvement in Stock 
Lending activity since 1998, reminding members of the suspension of activity in 2008 
due to concerns about the implications of short selling on markets, and the resumption 
in 2010 following improved market conditions and, more significantly, the introduction of 
global regulatory measures.  �� briefly explained the regulatory mechanisms particularly 
referring to the EU’s Regulation on Short selling and certain aspects of credit default 
swaps introduced in late 2012.

The Panel noted that the Pension Fund earned ������ million from stock lending 
between May 1998 and March 2014. The income generated varied over financial years 
as a result of investor demand for certain stocks and would naturally decrease in times 
of uncertainty. Whilst borrower demand had improved more recently in various asset 
classes, it was still impacted to some extent by the uncertain regulatory environment.

At ��������� the income received in ������  was consistent with the income received in 
�������� which was an increase over that received in the previous 3 years. This 
reflected the continued strength in borrower demand. 81% (����� � ! of the Fund’s 
lending income in the year was received from non-US equities with 45% of that amount 
(���"��""! being received from two key markets; Canada and the UK.

On 1 November 2012, the EU’s Regulation on ‘Short Selling and certain aspects of 
credit default swaps’ came into force.  After six months of the regulation being in force, 
on 3 June 2013, ESMA published a review on its impact. The review found that the 
introduction of the Short Selling Regulation (SSR) had some positive effects in terms of 
enhancing market transparency and reducing risks of settlement fails in EU financial 
markets. Whilst ESMA advised the European Commission to consider a#$%')*+, a 
number of minor aspects in the SSR they did not alter the main elements.

On 22 January 2014, the European Court of Justice (ECJ) dismissed the UK’s challenge 
to the SSR. The UK was challenging the power of ESMA to adopt emergency measures 
under the SSR, which in their view went against general EU principles relating to the 
delegation of powers. The ECJ r�$�-)�# the plea, finding that the SSR and the powers 



- 3 -

given to ESMA were compatible with EU law. Both ESMA and the European 
Commission welcomed the ECJ’s ruling.

In response to questions from Members in relation to the risks associated with Stock 
Lending, the Director of Finance and Resources reported that collateral equivalent to 
105% of the value of the Stocks being borrowed was secured from the borrower and 
there was therefore little risk to the Fund.  The Panel were also informed that the Fund 
received 70% of the income from Stock Lending with the remaining 30% going to the 
custodian, Northern Trust.
 
RESOLVED . (a) That the report be received and that the continued practice of Stock 
Lending (sometimes referred to as Securities Lending) through the programme operated 
by Northern Trust be agreed.

(b) That reliance continue to be placed on the co-ordinated actions of the EU securities 
regulators, several of whom have adopted measures in their respective markets either 
to limit, or to introduce stringent requirements, or further reporting obligations, by firms 
to supervisory authorities on short selling. 

(c) That it be noted that with effect from 1 November 2012, the EU Regulation on ‘Short 
Selling and certain aspects of credit default swaps’ came into force. This prohibits 
‘naked’ short selling and introduces certain disclosure limits around significant short 
positions in a companies issued share capital. It also gives the European Securities and 
Markets Authority (ESMA) an increased role in the possible implementation of future 
short selling bans, allowing them to intervene directly in exceptional circumstances.

16. Equity Transition Summary (exemption paragraph 3)

The Director of Finance and Resources reported that that, in response to the strategic 
asset allocation review and following a successful transition process, (a) the minor 
structural changes to the UK, Global and Emerging Market Equity portfolios, outlined in 
the minutes of the Pensions Panel meeting on 20 May 2014 and subsequently approved 
by the Pensions Committee on 20 June 2014, were complete; and (b) the total cost of 
these changes to the Fund was /01134506 

RESOLVED . That the report outlining the equity transition undertaken in July 2014 and 
its resultant cost to the Pension Fund be noted.

17. Strategic Benchmark Review and Monitoring (Exemption Paragraph 3)

(a) Economic and Market Update 

The Panel received a presentation by Graeme Johnston, 789:;< Robertson, on the 
current economic and market conditions and their effect on the Fund’s investments.

They were informed that, with regard to the global economy, in the US, estimates of 
Quarter 1 economic growth were revised sharply downward, but survey evidence during 
Q2 suggested that the economy retained underlying momentum. Analogous global and 
regional indicators were also robust, with the 9:m=> exception of the Eurozone.   
7?:@AB;? inflation shot up in Japan following a rise in consumption tax and drifted above 



- 4 -

2% p.a. in the US. But globally there was little sign of building inflation pressure. In the 
Eurozone inflation remained well under 1% p.a.  In spite of the first-quarter fall in output 
in the US, markets continue to discount a steady tapering of QE and a first rise in US 
interest rates around the middle of next year. The Bank of England had hinted that 
strength of the UK economy may trigger a rate rise here later this year, with bank base 
rates expected to rise to around 2.50% over the next four years. The stronger UK 
economy and the prospect of higher interest rates helped sterling to strengthen further 
against the dollar and euro. In trade-weighted terms, sterling continued to climb to its 
highest levels since the final quarter of 2008. 

(b) Review of Position as at 31 July 2014

The Director of Finance and Resources detailed the Fund’s position and investments as 
at 31 July 2014 and reported as follows:

(i) Equities C With the exception of the work in progress on considering an 
alternative benchmark for the UK Active Equity Mandate with Standard Life Investments, 
which was to be brought to a future meeting of the Panel, all recommendations on UK 
and Global Equity portfolios had been actioned as agreed.

(ii) Bonds C The Panel agreed to:

 amend the Strategic Benchmark Allocation to reflect the Fund’s neutral 
position i.e. 6.5% in Conventional Gits and 6.5% in Index-linked gilts with a 
0% allocation to Corporate Bonds recognising that the current holding in 
Corporate Bonds is a tactical position;  re-invest the cash arising from corporate bond maturities in index-linked 
gilts; and  that DEFGIJK in consultation with Insight Investments, be asked to 
determine the triggers for the Fund to move back to its fully neutral 
position.   

Discussions with Insight Investments, DEFGIJ and the independent Advisors around 
appropriate triggers and a process for a move back in to the Fund’s neutral position 
were ongoing.

(iii) Alternatives C In order to reduce the large amount of cash being held by the 
Fund, pending further investment in suitable Property, the Panel agreed to temporarily 
increase the Fund’s investment in Alternatives. The intention was that 1.4% of the 
property underweight would be invested in alternatives bringing the overweight cash 
position down to under 3%. On 1 July 2014, an additional LMNF was invested in the 
Goldman Sachs DOPQO Fund portfolio.  DRSOTOUK investments have not been made in 
the Morgan Stanley DAF or the Schroders DCF for the following reasons:

 Shortly after the Panel meeting, Officers met with Schroders to discuss recent 
DCF performance issues. Schroders were unclear in their explanation of such 
and unconvincing in their proposals to regain lost performance going forward.  Tim Kidd of Colliers Capital, came forward with a number of properties he had 
viewed during May and which he was interested in pursuing. These totalled 
cLVNF and based on the assumption that the Fund may be successful in 50% of 



- 5 -

any bids, this would have accounted for jWXY under 1% of the 1.4% property 
underweight. Members had recently taken part in interviews as a result of which they re-
appointed Z[\]^X Robertston as their Investment Consultant. As part of that 
process all bidders were asked to comment on any areas of concern in the Fund. 
3 out of the 5 bidders expressed a concern about the DAF _ DCF, either for 
performance, structural or management reasons. These had been discussed with 
the Advisors and whilst it was considered that there was no immediate need to 
sell, a piece of work would need to be undertaken to agree the action to be taken. 
Of course, should there be any heightened concern, funds would be redeemed as 
soon as possible and held in cash pending a decision on further investment

It was therefore suggested that the Panel should review the recommendation agreed at 
the meeting on 20 May 2014, and agree only to temporarily increase the investment in 
the Goldman Sachs Z`bd` Funds and not make any further investment in the Morgan 
Stanley Stanley DAF or the Schroders DCF.  

(iv) Property e At 7.8%, property was currently underweight of its strategic benchmark 
allocation (SBA) of 10% by 2.2%. It was  recommended that the SBA to property should 
remain at 10% but that cash available for investment in property, totalling 1.4% of the 
actual Property allocation, be temporarily invested in Alternatives. It was suggested that 
this be reviewed in the light of (iii) above.

(v) Cash - The Fund had a 1% allocation to cash for day to day liquidity purposes but 
was currently running an overweight position of 3.4% in cash.  Officers and Advisers 
would need to review the position following the latest rebalancing activity and should 
significant cash balances still be anticipated going forwards then consideration would 
need to be given to entering into term deposits with approved counterparties. Should 
cash balances continue to accrue, then the use of Short Bond Funds, as permitted by 
the Annual Investment Strategy and approved by the Panel at their meeting on 4 March 
2014, would be utilised. Advisors and Officers were still of the opinion that ‘sweating’ 
remaining cash for relatively low additional basis points of return was unnecessary.    

RESOLVED e (a) That no change be made to the Fund’s strategic benchmark allocation 
to the \]jfg asset classes of equities, bonds, property, alternatives and cash.

(b) That the decision of the Panel at the meeting on 20 May 2014 to temporarily 
increase the Fund’s investment in Alternatives be reviewed and that it be agreed that no 
further investment be made in the Morgan Stanley Stanley DAF or the Schroders DCF 
and to temporarily increase the investment in the Goldman Sachs Z`bd` Funds.

(c) That the underweight position in property be held in cash pending further suitable 
property investments being sourced in due course.

(d) That the present level of currency hedging (50% of the Fund’s overseas equity 
exposure) be noted. (This follows the Panel’s decision on 20 May 2014 to terminate the 
Dynamic Currency Z`bdh^d Program with Record Currency and delegate the transition 
for doing so to the Director of Finance and Resources in consultation with the Advisors).



- 6 -

18. Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the quarter ended  
30 June 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)

The Director of Finance and Resources submitted a report by Portfolio Evaluation 
Limited on their analysis of the Pension Fund’s risk and return, the overview of the total 
Fund and the performance of each individual manager as at 30 June 2014.  A market 
commentary was included which reflected the overall positive performance of all asset 
classes over the year and gave a more detailed summary of various components of 
each class. 

It was noted that although the Fund has generated a positive return over the quarter it 
had underperformed the benchmark by -0.3% due to the below benchmark performance 
of property and equities. In the case of equities this was due to Sarasin and Standard 
Life. A further small negative was the continued underweight exposure to Property as 
this was the highest performing asset class. On a more positive note the Frank Russell 
Emerging Market Equity portfolio, the Alternatives Pool and the Bond pool (due to 
Insight) outperformed. Of particular note has been the strong performance of the active 
currency hedging portfolio that has protected equity market values in a strong sterling 
environment.

RESOLVED – That the report by Portfolio Evaluation Limited on the overall performance 
of the Fund for the quarter ended 30 June 2014 be noted.

19. Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment Report Quarter 
1 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)

The Director of Finance and Resources presented a report in respect of Corporate 
Governance and Socially Responsible Investment including details of the Fund’s 
Investment Managers’ voting activity on corporate resolutions for companies held in 
their portfolios, together with a copy of the Quarterly Engagement Report issued by the 
Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) and guidance from the Law Commission.  
The Panel also received a presentation on Fiduciary Duty and Ethical Investment Policy 
including the changes arising from the recent guidance from the Law Commission

The Panel noted that the Law Commission’s Report had concluded that the primary 
purpose of a Pension Fund was to provide a pension and therefore financial 
considerations were key when making investment decisions.  The primary aim of an 
investment strategy was to secure the best realistic return over the long term, given the 
need to control for risks.  The Commission made a key distinction between the factors 
the Panel should consider and may consider– financial factors vs. non-financial factors.  
Overall the Commission explained that the Pensions Panel:

 Must always take account of financial factors but  The Panel can take into account non-financial factors if two tests are met. Test 1- 
Trustees should have good reason to think that scheme members would share 
the concern; and 
Test 2 - The decision should not involve a risk of significant financial detriment to 
the fund.



- 7 -

With regard to Test 1, it was noted that the Law Commission were of the view that it was 
not a requirement for a consultation to find 100% of the scheme members agreed to a 
non-financial factor, however if there is a disagreement the Panel would need to 
determine whether it was iklnopoqtuv to proceed anyway. Where there was uncertainty- 
the financial factors should prevail.

In response to questions from Members, it was explained that the Pensions Panel’s 
policy on socially responsible investment was to endorse the United Nations Principles 
of Responsible Investing (UNPRI) and seek to encourage its active equity managers to 
sign up to them to incorporate environmental, social and governance issues into their 
investment process. Currently all of the Funds active equity managers were signed up to 
the UNPRI.

Following a vote it was:

RESOLVED w (a) That the current environmental, social and governance issues faced 
by investment managers in making their investment decisions and the actions being 
taken by them in engaging with companies, be noted.

(b) That the Quarterly Engagement Report issued by the Local Authority Pension Fund 
Forum (LAPFF) be noted.

(c)That the report from the Law Commission, the summary of which, entitled ‘Is it always 
about the xyzv{|} Pension trustees’ duties when setting an investment strategy: 
Guidance from the Law Commission, attached at Appendix 1 and the associated 
presentation by the Director of Law, Governance and Transformation, on Fiduciary Duty 
and Ethical Investment Policy, be noted. 

(d) That the present policy on Environment, Social and Governance issues as set out in 
the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) under the heading Socially Responsible 
Investment be maintained, lktiv~n to an annual review of the SIP. 

20. Private Equity (exemption paragraph 3)

(a) Private Equity �qukqnoyzl as at 31 March 2014 

The Director of Finance and Resources reported on the market value of the various 
Private Equity Investments held by the Fund as at 31 March 2014 detailing the actual 
commitment to each Fund, its investment rate of return (IRR) and its estimated multiple, 
comparing that performance with the 2013 position.

�v explained that both the current investment rate of return and multiple were in line 
with expectations.

(b) Review of Position as at 30 June 2014

The Director of Finance and Resources submitted information on the Fund’s Private 
Equity Investments as at 30 June 2014 showing distribution based on geography, 
strategy and stage.  



- 8 -

(c) Private Equity Investment

The Panel received a report by Graeme Johnston, Hymans Robertson, reviewing how 
the Fund might best manage its private equity investments and proposing a solution for 
the near term that provided an efficient governance solution and reduced the 
administrative burden in a way that was consistent with achieving the target allocation.  
Mr Johnston recommended that:

 The Panel should adopt a second core manager for its private equity portfolio.

 New commitments should be made only to funds raised by HarbourVest and the 
new core manager.

 Both core managers should be asked provide broad exposure to private equity, 
but be given some degree of flexibility. The details of target structures would be 
worked out in consultation with the managers, but would include things like 
permitted ranges for geographical exposures and restrictions on specialist 
investments.

 The Panel should give priority to maintaining a relatively stable level of annual 
commitments to private equity. ������� to further refinement of HarbourVest’s 
modelling work, a level around £40m seemed appropriate.

 As a result, the Fund’s target allocation to private equity should be trimmed to 
3%, although the Panel should be prepared to tolerate short-term variation in 
actual exposure.

 The split of new commitments between the two core managers would also 
require consultation with the core managers. There was no specific 
recommendation to build the new core manager’s allocation to an equal size with 
HarbourVest’s nor even to reduce HarbourVest’s allocation below the originally 
intended level of 70%. However, it was key that the new core manager should be 
able to build a well-diversified exposure and, in the early years at least, this might 
mean a bias in their favour in the allocation of commitments.

RESOLVED – (a) That the Fund’s position on Private Equity Investments both at the 
end of ������� and as at 30 June 2014 be noted.

(b) That the report from Graeme Johnston, ������ Robertson, reviewing how the Fund 
might best manage its private equity investments be received and the recommendations 
therein be noted and that detailed consideration of the second core manager be 
delegated to the Director of Finance in consultation with advisors.

The following presentation was also given to provide information on Private Equity 
Investment and on the performance of the Fund’s Private Equity portfolio:



- 9 -

21. Private Equity Training and Manager Presentation (exemption paragraph 3)

The Panel received a presentation by George Anson and Hannah Tobin of HarbourVest 
on the performance of the Fund’s private equity portfolio.  

RESOLVED – That the presentation from HarbourVest be noted.

Chair



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

Item no 8 on Agenda
Not for publication by virtue of

Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)

Local Members Interest

Nil

PENSIONS PANEL – 2 DECEMBER 2014

Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance and Resources 
in relation to Property

A. In consultation with the Chairman, in agreeing:

1. The sale of the Staffordshire Pension Fund’s units in The Mall Unit Trust (a 
Shopping Centre Fund) for the sum of ����������� to Capital and Regional 
������

Note: Units in ‘The Mall’ to the value of  ¡¢¤ were purchased in 2006 in an effort to gain 
exposure to the larger retail properties in the sector. ¥¦§¨ soon afterwards, the value of 
the units soared to ©ª«¬ under  ¡¤ but following the financial crisis in 2008 the value of 
the units fell to less than  ¡®¯¤° valuations both ways being magnified by the effects of 
gearing in the unit trust. The current book cost being carried in the accounts is 
 ¡¢±¢¢±¢¢¡ versus the market value at 30 September 2014 of  ¡±²³¡±´µ¡®

 
¶· R are the asset managers of The Mall, and they have always had a substantial stake 
in the Fund, somewhere between 25% and 30%. Aviva Investors were the Fund 
Managers and their clients held circa 50%. Earlier in the year, ¶·¸ acquired the Aviva 
stake, and also a further 10% holding from another party, taking their ownership to 92%. 

 
Back in July, it was considered that to be one of a number of Investors accounting for 8% 
was far from ideal; there is very unlikely to be a secondary market for units and so the 
only buyer is effectively ¶·¸® The view counter to this was that everything that has come 
out of The Mall Fund in recent months suggested that performance, albeit off a low base, 
is likely to be good in the coming two years. The portfolio debt has been refinanced, the 
Retail Market is expected to improve, and there are planned asset management 
initiatives which should add to value. On balance, it was felt that the fact ¶·¸ owned 
92% meant that they would be even more clearly focussed on creating value and that the 
Fund shouldn’t  sell. It was also assumed, that over time ¶·¸ would continue to be 
ready purchasers, with the potential for them to pay a decent premium as they got closer 
to 100% and achieve complete ownership.

 
It transpired in early October that ¶·¸ had moved closer to its end goal of 100% control, 
when they announced to the stock market that they had agreed to redeem units with 
several minority unit holders at a price of 39p per unit, a slight discount to the 30 
September valuation. This increased their holding to 99.49% and left Staffordshire 
Pension Fund as the only other investor with a 0.51% holding.  

 



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

Since then ¹º» have actively pursued the Fund, via Colliers Capital to negotiate a sale. 
Their latest offer of  ¼½¾¿ÀÀ¾ÀÀÀ for the Pension ÁÂÃÄÅÆ units, equivalent to approximately 
44p per unit was at a premium to the 30 September 2014 valuation of ¼¿ÇÈ¾É¿Ê (8.71%). 
All other small external unit holders accepted a 39p per unit redemption price, which 
would have been ¼¿¾ÈËÊ¾ÀÊÇ¾ so the Fund’s stance in ÌÍÎÍÏÐÑÃÒ their previous proposals 
has resulted in ¹º» increasing their offer by a total of ¼½ÓÀ¾ÊÀÓÔ

 
Whilst any sale is counter to endeavours to reach the Fund’s 10% target weighting to 
property (currently 8.1%) the transaction will have relatively little impact on the target 
weighting (c0.7%). There will be a knock on effect on performance (yet to be determined) 
due to the realised loss on the book cost

B. In agreeing:

2. A lease of Unit 5 Eastgate Park, Scunthorpe, for a period of 5 years, at a rent of 
ÕÖ×Ø××× per annum. Tenant: Birkdale Roller Shutter Company Ltd.

3. A lease of Unit 7, Oasis Business Park, Eynsham, for a period of 5 years, at a 
rent of ÕÙÚØÛÜÖ per annum. Two years at half rent (equating to 12 months rent 
free) has been granted as an incentive to the letting. Tenant: Waterslade Ltd. 

4. A lease of the whole of Unit 12, Oasis Park, Eynsham for a period of 5 years, at 
a rent of ÕÙÙØÛÝÞ per annum. The letting is to the company who recently took a 
lease of the ground floor of the property and in line with that letting, three months 
rent free, followed by 3 months at half rent on the 1st floor was agreed as an 
incentive to the letting. Tenant: Adler ß Allan Ltd.

5. The rent review of 24 King Edward Street, Leeds, due on 3 October 2013 be 
recorded at NIL increase. The rent remains at ÕÞ×àØ××× per annum. Tenant: áâ 
Northern Europe Services Ltd.

Andrew Burns
Director of Finance and Resources

___________________________________________________________________
Contact : Melanie Stokes
Telephone No. (01785) 276330







STAFFORDSHIRE PENSION FUND 001 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

November 14  

\\HRGLAFS01\DEPTS\INV\CLIENT\STAFFORDSHIRE CC STFD01\MEETINGS\141202 Q4 2014 COMMENTARY.DOCX 

Market update 

Introduction 

This paper is addressed to the Pensions Panel of the Staffordshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”).  The first section 

provides a short review of economic and market conditions in recent months.  The second section comments on 

the outlook for different asset classes. 

Market returns 

Q3 14 background 

Global economy 

 The US economy continued to grow strongly in Q3. However, the US Federal Reserve maintained its 

stance that it would not raise interest rates until a “considerable time” had passed after the imminent end of 
its Quantitative Easing (QE) programme.  

 Manufacturing survey evidence hinted at some loss of momentum in UK growth. With CPI inflation safely 

below the 2% p.a. target, any thoughts that interest rates may rise this year have been banished.  

 With inflation stuck well below 1% p.a., the European Central Bank eased policy again, cutting interest 

rates and edging towards the introduction of QE. 

 The Japanese economy bounced back following a second quarter contraction in the wake of April’s 
consumption tax hike.  

 Sterling weakened in the run-up to the Scottish referendum, but recovered after the vote for no change. 

 A surging US dollar was the main feature of foreign exchange markets. A solid economic recovery and the 

end of monetary easing were factors behind the strength. 

Bond markets 

 30-year government bond yields fell in the UK, US and Germany, drifting briefly below 3% p.a. in the UK for 

the first time since May 2013 and falling well below 2% p.a. in Germany.  

 Long-dated index-linked gilt yields also fell over the quarter, but by less than conventional gilt yields, 

implying a lowering of long-term inflation expectations.  

 In credit markets, yield spreads over risk-free rates drifted higher as escalating conflict in Ukraine and 

Middle East and, latterly, broader economic concerns depressed investors’ risk appetite.  

UK 30 Sep - To 30 September  Global 30 Sep- To 30  September 

 13 Nov* 3 months 1 year   13 Nov* 3 months 1 year 

EQUITIES 0.8 -1.0 6.1  EQUITIES 2.1 0.9 15.1 

BONDS      North America 3.2 0.9 19.5 

Conventional gilts 2.0 3.7 5.7  Europe ex UK -2.3 0.1 14.2 

Index-linked gilts 3.2 5.3 8.8  Japan 5.5 5.9 13.3 

Credit 1.4 2.9 7.5  Dev. Asia ex Jap 2.3 -1.2 4.0 

PROPERTY 1.5 4.7 19.7  Emerging markets 0.8 1.3 11.0 

STERLING      GOV’T BONDS 0.9 1.5 5.5 

v US dollar -2.9 -5.2 0.1  HEDGE FUNDS -0.8 0.6 7.7 

v euro -1.7 2.8 7.3  COMMODITIES -3.5 -11.5 -8.3 

v Japanese yen 2.5 2.7 11.9  Total return in local currency ($ for Hedge Funds and Commodities) 
 *Property and Hedge Funds (estimate) to end October 2014 



STAFFORDSHIRE PENSION FUND 002 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

November 14  

\\HRGLAFS01\DEPTS\INV\CLIENT\STAFFORDSHIRE CC STFD01\MEETINGS\141202 Q4 2014 COMMENTARY.DOCX 

Equities 

 Global equity markets quickly shook off initial concerns about geopolitical tensions, but succumbed to 

some nervousness about the global economic outlook towards the end of the quarter.  Global equity 

indices rose by 3% in sterling terms, but below 1% in local currency. 

 Currency fluctuations were the main influence on the return to sterling investors from regional equity 

markets. In local currency terms, a bounce in the Japanese market was noteworthy. 

 Oil & Gas was the worst-performing global equity sector over the quarter; Basic Materials also suffered.  

Otherwise, sector performance was mixed. Healthcare stocks were strong, but other defensive sectors 

such as Utilities and Consumer Goods underperformed.  

 Corporate merger and acquisition activity picked up pace. In particular, the strength of technology stocks 

encouraged a flurry of new issues in the sector.  The Chinese internet giant, Alibaba, had the biggest 

initial public offering in history. 

Other markets 

 Commodity prices were on a general decline over the quarter.  Oil prices tumbled to the lowest levels 

since late 2012, caught between slack demand and plentiful supply from the Gulf States.  Gold and 

agricultural commodity indices hit their lowest levels for four years. 

 The rally in UK commercial property maintained its recent pace. In September, capital values in the IPD 

Monthly Index were more than 12% higher than they were a year previously. 

Q4 14 update 

 The nervousness about the economic outlook continued into October.  Forecasts for global economic 

growth are being trimmed, although most still suggest there will be no slowdown this year and an 

acceleration in 2015.  

 Some weak US economic data caused a mild panic in financial markets on one day in the middle of 

October.  Government bond yields fell sharply as investors fled to safety, but the recovery was underway 

before the end of the day.  

 At their worst, global equity indices had fallen around 10% from their highs of early September, but they 

have subsequently recovered almost all of that loss.  US equities are still leading the rally and have 

reached new all-time highs in November. 

 The US Federal Reserve ended its QE programme as expected, just as the ECB was initiating its own 

programme in response to persistently low inflation.  Underlying inflation pressures are fading in Japan, 

too, although a significant increase in the Bank of Japan’s QE programme surprised markets. 

 The price of Brent crude fell to just over $80 per barrel, its lowest level for four years.  It seemed unlikely 

that OPEC, and Saudi Arabia in particular, would take any serious action to curb oil supply. 

 The Bank of England expects annual UK CPI inflation to fall below 1% in the next few months and return to 

the 2% target only slowly.  It also forecasts that average earnings will soon be growing faster than prices. 

  



STAFFORDSHIRE PENSION FUND 003 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

November 14  

\\HRGLAFS01\DEPTS\INV\CLIENT\STAFFORDSHIRE CC STFD01\MEETINGS\141202 Q4 2014 COMMENTARY.DOCX 

Asset class outlook 

The tables below summarise our broad views on the outlook for various asset classes, in which the Fund invests 

either directly or through holdings in Diversified Alternative Funds.  The ratings used are: 

These are intended to give a guide to our views on the prospects for markets over a period of around three years; 

although they are updated quarterly, they are not intended as tactical calls. The ratings reflect our expectations of 

absolute returns and assume no constraints on investment discretion.  They need to be interpreted in the context 

of the broader strategic framework within which the Fund is managed. 

The volatility of October has had little impact overall.  Equities did correct by 10%, but have recovered almost all 

of the fall; bonds have become even more expensive.  The net effect is to leave us no less concerned about the 

outlook for returns from most asset classes than we were last quarter. 

EQUITIES Cautious 

October’s volatility was by no means extreme in a historic context and vanished almost as soon as it appeared, 
but it may be an early sign that the favourable conditions of the last three years will not last for ever.  The 

problem for the long-term investor, as we see it, is that it is difficult to construct an economic background in 

which equities can sustain high real returns over the long term.  If risk-free yields normalise, valuations look 

stretched in terms of delivering a sufficient risk premium.  (There are pockets of potential value – Emerging 

Markets and UK, for example.)  If risk-free yields stay low, what are the implications for trend earnings growth 

and/or will investors demand higher risk premiums to compensate for low and potentially volatile growth? 

Overlaid on this, is any adjustment required if profits return to previous trends – bad for the US, good for 

Europe. 

 

PRIVATE EQUITY Cautious 

The third quarter of 2014 saw something of a slowdown in private equity fundraising but there is still a record 

amount (approaching $1.2 trillion according to one estimate) of committed cash available for investment.   Deal 

completion slowed in Europe in the quarter, but there was an increase in activity in North America and Asia.  

The secondary market is still lively and prices remain at elevated levels.  Secondary investors appear to have 

an increasing appetite for less straightforward transactions, including the purchase of partnership interests in 

funds of funds. 

 

UK PROPERTY Neutral 

Capital values have been racing ahead at a rate of almost 1% a month for a year now; rents are just shuffling 

forward.  Yields are as low as they have been since the middle of 2008 and the premium over UK equities has 

fallen by 2 percentage points in the last four years.  It is difficult to argue that these yield levels are particularly 

distorted by cyclical factors.  It is true that even a modest upturn in the tenant market could have a magnified 

effect on passing income as the still-high level of voids gets pared back.  By the same token, there would be 

some dilution of any underlying rental rise from the high level of over-rented properties.  We would prioritise 

tactical selling over buying. 

  

Positive Attractive Neutral Cautious Negative 



STAFFORDSHIRE PENSION FUND 004 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

November 14  

\\HRGLAFS01\DEPTS\INV\CLIENT\STAFFORDSHIRE CC STFD01\MEETINGS\141202 Q4 2014 COMMENTARY.DOCX 

CONVENTIONAL GILTS Cautious 

Q3 continued the trends that have been in place throughout 2014 – a moderation of the speed at which risk-

free rates are expected to rise and a reduction in the implied peak level of rates.  This is obviously consistent 

with (though not necessarily driven by) recent comment from the BoE.  It is hard to see that recent moves have 

been driven by underlying economic developments.  If you were concerned about the long-term economic 

outlook for the UK, there have been much better opportunities to buy gilts in the recent past.  We would not be 

chasing the market now and we certainly see no relative value in long-dated gilts any more. 

 

INDEX-LINKED GILTS Cautious 

Real yields have returned to the lows of the first half of 2013 – well below zero across all maturities.  The 

prospective returns for long-term investors are poor.  This remains a market of interest only to those who 

require to match liabilities, and even they may balk at current prices.  At a more granular level, because the 

latest fall in real yields has been less than the fall in conventional yields, the cost of inflation protection is close 

to the lowest levels since the start of last year. 

 

INVESTMENT-GRADE CREDIT Cautious 

Margins on sterling corporate debt have been fairly steady for 18 months or so.  There is little new to say in 

tactical terms and our bias would still be to reduce risk in bond portfolios.  The background of very easy 

monetary policy, high risk tolerance and low default experience is more likely to deteriorate than improve 

further.  There is a danger that any downturn is magnified by a lack of liquidity in credit markets, but long-term 

investors using investment-grade credit in a strategic matching role have no reason to panic. 

 

OTHER CREDIT Cautious 

Spreads have risen significantly – by around 1% p.a. since the middle of last year.  But that just takes them 

back to where they were a year ago and valuations look stretched relative to longer-term history.  As with 

Investment Grade credit, the immediate economic outlook does not look too threatening, but it seems more 

likely to get a little worse than even better.  In particular, the market is dependent on a continuation of the 

below-average level of defaults experienced in recent years.  The volume of supply and weakening of covenant 

protection suggest that it would be optimistic to expect that to persist over the medium term. 

 

EMERGING MARKET DEBT Neutral 

Local currency Emerging Market Debt (EMD) has not been immune to the recent weakness in credit markets 

but has been relatively resilient – another reminder that it is not actually credit.  Naturally, any yield advantage 

that EMD had over credit markets has been eroded.  However, it’s currency that’s key.  At index level, EMD 
currency is as cheap relative to the dollar as it has been for a decade.  The short-term economic outlook for EM 

might argue for further downward pressure, but strategic doubts about the currency component of long-term 

returns would undermine the strategic rationale for holding EMD. 

  



STAFFORDSHIRE PENSION FUND 005 

HYMANS ROBERTSON LLP 

November 14  

\\HRGLAFS01\DEPTS\INV\CLIENT\STAFFORDSHIRE CC STFD01\MEETINGS\141202 Q4 2014 COMMENTARY.DOCX 

HEDGE FUNDS Neutral 

There will always be tactical opportunities in the hedge fund sector – distressed debt is one example – the 

strategic argument for investment is the opportunity to invest in funds that offer genuine diversification from 

equities.  This is most commonly found in the global macro and managed futures sectors.  These have been 

out of favour (and performance has been disappointing) in a period when returns to traditional risk premiums 

have been high.  But traditional risk premiums are compressed and the (very early and patchy) evidence of the 

recent downturn in equities is that the macro sectors have done their job.  Of course, whatever the underlying 

rationale, the decision to invest requires a belief in the ability to identify manager skill. 

 

CASH Attractive 

We would continue to hold on to some cash on a tactical basis where discretion permits.  The latest fall in bond 

yields argues for low duration in bond portfolios and the correction in risk assets has not done enough to take 

valuations to compelling levels. 

 

 

 

Graeme Johnston 

Partner 

14 November 2014 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

 

 

 

Notes 

Market returns 

Percentage total returns in local currency ($ for Commodities and Hedge funds).  Source: Datastream; indices as shown below. 

Equities  Bonds  

UK FTSE All-Share Conventional gilts FTSE-A UK Gilts All Stocks 

Overseas (developed) FTSE World Index-linked gilts FTSE-A UK Index Linked Gilts All Stocks 

Emerging Markets FTSE All-World UK credit iBoxx Non Gilts All Maturities 

Property IPD Monthly Overseas Government JP Morgan Global 

Hedge Funds DJ CS Hedge Fund/Core Hedge Fund Commodities S&P GSCI Light Energy 

 

General Risk Warning 

Please note the value of investments, and income from them, may fall as well as rise. This includes equities, government or corporate bonds, 

and property, whether held directly or in a pooled or collective investment vehicle.  Further, investments in developing or emerging markets 

may be more volatile and less marketable than in mature markets. 

Exchange rates may also affect the value of an overseas investment.  As a result, an investor may not get back the amount originally 

invested.  Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance.  



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

Item no 10(b) on Agenda
Not for publication by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972

Local Members Interest

Nil

PENSIONS PANEL – 2 DECEMBER 2014

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources

Strategic Benchmark Review and Monitoring

1. The Director of Finance and Resources’ report attached at Appendix 1 
summarises the Pension Fund’s position against its strategic benchmark at 31 
October 2014. The position based on the latest estimated market valuations 
available will be tabled at the meeting. 

2. At meetings on the 3 December 2013 and 13 December 2013, the Pensions 
Panel and Pensions Committee respectively, reviewed the Strategic Asset 
Allocation and advocated no change to the ãäåæç asset class allocations i.e.

Equities 68%
Bonds 13%
Property 10%
Alternatives   8%
Cash   1%

3. The Panel has since considered and approved changes to a number of areas 
of detail within the Fund’s Strategic Asset Allocation, in terms of the individual 
asset classes and allocations to individual investment managers, and these 
have all been actioned accordingly.  

4. Assuming that investment income is retained by Investment Managers and 
making allowances for drawdowns (net of contributions) in Private Equity, 
Property transactions, pre-payment of contributions and currency settlements 
there will be an estimated surplus of èéêëìí in the Central Cash Reserve at 
the end of February 2015.   

5. Based on the data attached and advice to be received, the Panel is asked to: 

i) review the allocation of the Fund’s strategic benchmark to the ãäåæç 
asset classes of equities, bonds, property, alternatives and cash; No 
change advocated

ii) decide to what, if any, extent the individual asset classes and 
investment managers should be rebalanced within their individual 
ranges; 

iii) consider the use of the îçæåïðñïò cash balance; 
iv) note the present level of currency hedging is 35% of the Fund’s 

overseas equity exposure. This follows the Panel’s decision to 
terminate the Dynamic Currency óïòôõöô Program with Record 



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

Currency Management (Agenda Item 12, 20 May 2014) and delegate 
the transition for doing so to the Director of Finance and Resources in 
consultation with the Advisors. The 31 October 2014 report from RCM 
is attached at Appendix 2.
 

Equities

6. Later on today’s agenda, the Panel will be asked to consider introducing a 
new benchmark for the Fund’s UK Active Equity Mandate. The benchmark is 
currently the ‘FTSE All-Share’ and the proposal to be discussed is a move to 
the ‘FTSE All-Share with a 2% cap’ i.e. a 2% maximum allocation to the 
amount of each stock making up that benchmark. ÷øùúûü Robertson will take 
Panel members through the background and reasons for the proposal. 

7. Furthermore, the Fund’s UK Active Equity Manager, Standard Life 
Investments, have been invited to the meeting: 
i) to review the performance of the current mandate they manage for the 

Fund, against the FTSE All Share benchmark;  
ii) to present to the Panel on their capabilities to manage the mandate in 

line with the proposed new benchmark, FTSE All Share with a 2% cap; 
and

iii) to introduce a new portfolio manager Andrew Millington, who will 
replace John Wilson, when he retires at the end of December 2014.

    
Bonds

8. The Panel agreed to:
(i) amend the Strategic Benchmark Allocation to reflect the Fund’s neutral 

position i.e. 6.5% in Conventional Gits and 6.5% in Index-linked gilts 
with a 0% allocation to Corporate Bonds recognising that the current 
holding in Corporate Bonds is a tactical position; 

(ii) re-invest the cash arising from corporate bond maturities in index-linked 
gilts; and 

(iii) that ÷øùúûüý in consultation with Insight Investments, be asked to 
determine the triggers for the Fund to move back to its fully neutral 
position.   

9. Discussions with Insight Investments, ÷øùúûü and the independent Advisors 
around appropriate triggers and a process for a move back in to the Fund’s 
neutral position remain ongoing. With interest rates forecast to be low for the 
foreseeable future, it is not envisaged that any move will take place soon. 
Therefore, plans and a monitoring process will be put in place to ensure the 
Fund is ready to act at the appropriate time.  

Alternatives

10. Following the paper received from ÷øùúûü Robertson at the meeting of the 
Panel in September 2014, it was agreed that the target allocation for capital 
investment, in Private Equity (PE), in each vintage year, should be þÿc� - 
ÿ£�ù�  

11. The present ÷H� and Spoke approach was also considered as part of 
÷øùúûü� paper. ÷H� referring to a main ‘hub’ manager (÷ú���H���ü	
 with 
whom we would expect to invest c75% of the Fund’s PE investments and the  



Pensions Panel 02.12.14

‘spoke’ consisting of other managers (Knightsbridge, Partners Group, Capital 
Dynamics) with whom the Fund would invest the remaining 25% of its PE 
investments. ����� proposed amending the current approach to appoint a 
second ‘hub’ manager alongside ������������ continuing to ensure sufficient 
diversification, across managers, geography, strategy and stage, but at the 
same time, simplifying the present structure and reducing the Governance 
burden. Officers are continuing discussions with ����� on the impact of this 
change and the process to be followed to choose the second ‘hub’ manager.   
Meanwhile, the Fund will continue to invest with ����������� and the 
remaining spoke as opportunities arise.  

Property

12. At 8.0%, property remains underweight its Strategic Benchmark Allocation of 
10% by 2.0%. Panel Members have already been updated about the progress 
of the commissioning of the Property Investment mandate and it proposed 
that until such time as any appointment is made, the underweight position in 
property will be held in cash pending further suitable property investments 
being sourced in due course.
     

Cash

13. The Fund has a 1% allocation to cash for day to day liquidity purposes. Whilst 
the Fund is currently running an overweight position of 3.2% in cash, the 
reasons for this are well known.  

14. As an alternative to entering into term deposits with banks and in order to 
mitigate any risk of bail-in, a Sterling Short Bond Fund with Ignis Asset 
Management has been opened with an initial funding limit of ����   

15. The Panel is also asked to note that with effect from 1 January 2015, the 
bankers to the Staffordshire Pension Fund will be the Lloyds Banking Group, 
following their successful tender bid.

General

16. S������ to all recommendations in this report being approved by the Panel, all 
asset classes, with the exception of cash, and all investment managers are 
expected to be within acceptable ranges. See Appendix 1 attached.

17. Officers will continue to monitor the Strategic Asset Allocation on a monthly 
basis to ensure asset allocations remain within suggested ranges.

Andrew Burns
Director of Finance and Resources

___________________________________________________________________
Contact : Melanie Stokes  
Telephone No. (01785) 276330 











A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
1

P
a
g
e

 1

N
o

t fo
r p

u
b

lic
a
tio

n
 b

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 

o
f P

a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2

A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e

 5
0



P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

Ite
m

 n
o

 1
2
 o

n
 A

g
e
n

d
a

N
o
t fo

r p
u
b
lic

a
tio

n
 b

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f
P

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 3

 o
f P

a
rt I o

f S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t A

c
t 1

9
7
2

L
o
ca

l M
e
m

b
e
rs In

te
re

st

N
il

P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 P

A
N

E
L

 –
 2

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
4

R
e
p

o
rt o

f th
e
 D

ire
c
to

r o
f F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 &

 �
 
!
"#
$
$
%

 R
'
�
)
 
*
�
"+
$
'

 "*
I
'
�
,
-
'
*
,

 
Q
.
#
R
,
'
R

 3
 2

0
1
4

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
tio

n
 o

f th
e
 C

h
a
irm

a
n

1
.

T
h
a
t th

e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l n

o
te

s
 th

e
 c

u
rre

n
t e

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n
ta

l, s
o

c
ia

l a
n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 is

s
u
e
s
 fa

c
e
d

 b
y
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 in
 m

a
k
in

g
 th

e
ir 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 th

e
 a

c
tio

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 ta

k
e
n
 b

y
 th

e
m

 in
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 

w
ith

 c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
. 

2
.

T
h
a
t th

e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l n

o
te

s
 th

e
 Q

u
a
rte

rly
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t R

e
p
o
rt 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 th

e
 L

o
c
a
l A

u
th

o
rity

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 F

o
ru

m
 (L

A
P

F
F

).

" /
01
2
3
4
5
062
/

 &
 +
B
5
7
8
1
2
4
/
3

3
.

T
h
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l re

c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 its

 ro
le

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f p

ro
m

o
tin

g
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
tic

e
 in

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

 w
h
ic

h
 is

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 to

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

ith
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 lo

n
g
 te

rm
 re

tu
rn

s
. A

s
 a

 re
s
u
lt, th

e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 re

q
u
ire

s
 

its
 U

K
 e

q
u
ity

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
ith

 th
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l R
e
p
o
rtin

g
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’s

 U
K

 S
te

w
a
rd

s
h
ip

 C
o
d
e

 a
n
d

 a
s
k
s
 th

a
t o

th
e
r in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 re

q
u
ire

d
 to

 fo
llo

w
 it a

s
 fa

r a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

4
.

T
h
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l’s

 p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t is

 to
e
n
d
o
rs

e
 th

e
 U

n
ite

d
 N

a
tio

n
s
 P

rin
c
ip

le
s
 o

f R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 In

v
e
s
tin

g
 

(U
N

P
R

I) a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
 to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 its

 a
c
tiv

e
 e

q
u
ity

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 to
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 

to
 th

e
m

 to
 in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n
ta

l, s
o
c
ia

l a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 is

s
u
e

s
 

in
to

 th
e
ir in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t p

ro
c
e
s
s
. C

u
rre

n
tly

 a
ll o

f th
e
 F

u
n
d
s
 a

c
tiv

e
 e

q
u
ity

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 s
ig

n
e
d
 u

p
 to

 th
e

 U
N

P
R

I.

5
.

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f th
e
 F

u
n
d
’s

 in
d
iv

id
u
a
l in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

lly
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t p

o
lic

ie
s
, a

s
 w

e
ll a

s
 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

n
 th

e
 U

K
 S

te
w

a
rd

s
h
ip

 C
o
d
e
 a

n
d
 th

e
 U

N
P

R
I a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n
 

th
e
 S

ta
ffo

rd
s
h
ire

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 w

e
b
s
ite

 w
w

w
.s

ta
ffs

p
f.o

rg
.u

k
  



P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

S
o

m
e
 c

u
rre

n
t is

s
u

e
s

6
.

L
A

P
F

F
 is

s
u
e
d
 th

e
ir la

te
s
t Q

u
a
rte

rly
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t R

e
p
o
rt re

c
e

n
tly

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 a
tta

c
h
e
d
 fo

r in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 a

t A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
. S

ta
ffo

rd
s
h
ire

 
j9
:;
<
=

 L
A

P
F

F
 in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

 to
 re

a
ffirm

 its
 c

o
m

m
itm

e
n
t to

 m
a
tte

rs
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

lly
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t. P

a
n
e
l 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 to

 re
a
d

 th
e

 re
p
o
rt a

s
 it h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 th
e

 g
o
o
d

 
w

o
rk

 L
A

P
F

F
 d

o
e
s
 in

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

ith
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n
s
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf o

f its
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 th
is

 q
u
a
rte

r in
c
lu

d
e
;


q
u
e
s
tio

n
in

g
 th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 o
n

 th
e
 lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 e

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 p

a
y
 a

n
d
 lo

n
g
e
r te

rm
 

c
lim

a
te

 ris
k
s
 a

n
d
 m

itig
a
tio

n
 s

tra
te

g
ie

s
 a

t th
e
 B

ritis
h
 L

a
n
d
 A

G
M

.


a
s
k
in

g
 th

e
 c

h
a
ir o

f V
>
?
@
A>
C
D

 a
t th

e
 A

G
M

 a
b
o
u
t e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 e

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 p

a
y
, 

g
iv

e
n
 th

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
’s

 p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 s
tro

n
g
 o

v
e
r th

e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e
a
r. A

 re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 w

a
s
 re

c
e
iv

e
d
 th

a
t b

o
n
u
s
e
s
 ra

re
ly

 re
s
u
lt in

 a
 1

0
0
%

 p
a
y
-

o
u
t a

n
d
 th

a
t th

e
 lo

n
g

 te
rm

 in
c
e
n
tiv

e
 m

e
tric

 o
u
tp

e
rfo

rm
e
d
 th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t.


q
u
e
s
tio

n
in

g
 B

e
tfa

ir a
t its

 A
G

M
 o

v
e
r ille

g
a
l d

iv
id

e
n
d
s
 a

n
d

 s
h
a
re

 b
u
y
b
a
c
k
s
 

a
fte

r L
A

P
F

F
 is

s
u
e
d
 a

 v
o
tin

g
 a

le
rt o

n
 th

is
 to

p
ic

.


a
tte

n
d
in

g
 th

e
 B

T
 G

ro
u
p
 A

G
M

 to
 a

s
k
 h

o
w

 th
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 th

a
t its

 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 is

 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 re

fle
c
te

d
 in

 p
a
y
 in

c
e
n
tiv

e
s
 

w
h
e
n
 th

e
 im

p
o
rta

n
c
e
 o

f th
is

 a
re

a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
d
 in

 th
e
 

p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 m

e
tric

s
.


ra

is
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 in

 lig
h
t o

f th
e
 in

c
re

a
s
e
 in

 s
a
la

ry
 fo

r 
n
e
w

ly
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 C

E
O

 C
h
ris

to
p
h
e
r B

a
ile

y
 a

t th
e
 B

u
rb

e
rry

 A
G

M
.


a
tte

n
d
in

g
 th

e
 N

a
tio

n
a
l G

rid
 A

G
M

 to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 to

w
a
rd

s
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

th
e
 to

p
 le

v
e
l w

ith
in

 th
e
 C

a
rb

o
n

 D
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 P
E>
FD
G
JKL

 C
lim

a
te

 P
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 In
d
e
x
. L

A
P

F
F

 w
e
re

 to
ld

 th
e
y
 w

e
re

 th
e
 firs

t in
v
e
s
to

r g
ro

u
p
 to

 
ra

is
e
 th

is
 is

s
u
e
.


c
o
lla

b
o
ra

tiv
e
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

ith
 S

im
e
 D

a
rb

y
, K

u
a
la

 L
u
m

p
u
r B

e
rh

a
d

, A
s
ia

n
 

A
g
ri R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 IO

I G
ro

u
p

 o
n

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
a
lm

 o
il p

ra
c
tic

e
s
, a

ll w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 s

in
c
e

 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d

 a
n

 im
m

e
d
ia

te
 m

o
ra

to
riu

m
 o

n
 c

le
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f h
ig

h
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 s

to
c
k
 fo

re
s
ts

.


m

e
e
tin

g
 w

ith
 G

4
S

’s
 s

e
n
io

r in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t d

ire
c
to

r to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

t th
e
 

h
e
a
d
 o

f th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 a

n
d
 th

e
 e

ffe
c
t o

n
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n
a
l a

n
d
 re

p
u
ta

tio
n
a
l ris

k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.


m

e
e
tin

g
 w

ith
 G

le
n
c
o
re

 fo
r a

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 tim

e
 o

n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t w

ith
in

 
th

e
 A

im
in

g
 fo

r A
 in

v
e
s
to

r in
itia

tiv
e
, a

s
 w

e
ll a

s
 ra

is
in

g
 o

th
e

r s
o
c
ia

l a
n
d

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 ris

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
. 


p
u
rs

in
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t w

ith
 B

A
E

 b
y
 m

e
e
tin

g
 w

ith
 th

e
 c

h
a
ir, S

ir 
R

o
g
e
r C

a
rr. T

o
p
ic

s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 a

n
ti-c

o
rru

p
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
.



P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 v

o
tin

g
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

7
.

T
h
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l re

c
e
iv

e
s
 q

u
a
rte

rly
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 fro

m
 th

e
 F

u
n
d
’s

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
n

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f v
o
te

s
 c

a
s
t o

n
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 re

s
o
lu

tio
n
s
 

fo
r h

o
ld

in
g
s
 in

 th
e
ir re

le
v
a
n
t p

o
rtfo

lio
s
. T

h
e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
 ta

b
le

 s
u
m

m
a
ris

e
s
 

th
is

 v
o
tin

g
 a

c
tiv

ity
 in

 Q
u
a
rte

r 3
 2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 a

 fe
w

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 

n
o
te

s
 fo

r e
a
c
h

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. T

o
 s

e
e

 th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 q
u
a
rte

rly
 v

o
tin

g
 s

u
m

m
a
rie

s
 in

 fu
ll p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t th

e
 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 a
n
d

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 te

a
m

 a
t 

tMN
O
T
U
MW
XY
N
Z
T
[\
Z
]U
Z
^
_
T
tO
]]\
M^
T
`
[MN
Xa
\
b
XU
d
 o

r 0
1
7
8
5
 2

7
6
3
3
0
.

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t M
a
n

a
g

e
r V

o
tin

g
 A

c
tiv

ity
 Q

u
a
rte

r 3
 2

0
1
4

T
o

ta
l 

re
s
o

lu
tio

n
s

V
o

te
 w

ith
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

V
o

te
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
A

b
s
ta

in
N

o
t v

o
te

d

J
P

 M
o

rg
a
n

4
,2

4
5

3
,8

6
9

3
3
8

3
8

0

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 L
ife

4
5
1

4
2
5

9
1
7

0

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

2
5

2
5

0
0

0

S
a
ra

s
in

7
8

6
9

5
0

4

L
o

n
g

v
ie

w
0

0
0

0
0

S
ta

te
 S

tre
e
t

2
,4

7
7

2
,3

0
3

1
7
1

3
0

A
n

d
re

w
 B

u
rn

s
D

ire
c
to

r o
f F

in
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
o
n
ta

c
t:

M
e
la

n
ie

 S
to

k
e
s
 / T

im
 B

y
fo

rd
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 N

o
.:

(0
1
7
8
5
) 2

7
6
3
3
0
 / 2

7
8
1
9
6

B
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

: 
L
A

P
F

F
 Q

u
a
rte

rly
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t R

e
p
o
rt

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rte

rly
 R

e
p
o
rts

mailto:treasury.pensionfund@staffordshire.gov.uk


P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

E
q

u
a
litie

s
 im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
: T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 d

ire
c
t e

q
u
a
litie

s
 im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
 a

ris
in

g
 

fro
m

 th
is

 re
p
o
rt.

L
e
g

a
l im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
: T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 d
ire

c
t le

g
a
l im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
 a

ris
in

g
 fro

m
 th

is
 

re
p
o
rt.

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 a

n
d

 V
a
lu

e
 fo

r m
o

n
e
y
 im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
: T

h
e
 re

s
o
u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 fo

r 
m

o
n
e
y
 im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
 a

re
 in

c
lu

d
e
d
 in

 th
e
 b

o
d
y
 o

f th
e
 re

p
o
rt. S

p
e
c
ific

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

tio
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 to

 a
n
y
 e

ffe
c
t o

n
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t re

tu
rn

s
.

R
is

k
 im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s
:  T

h
e
re

 is
 a

 ris
k
 th

a
t a

n
y
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 o

f in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 

re
s
u
lt in

 th
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 n

o
t m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t re

tu
rn

s
.

C
lim

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 im
p

lic
a
tio

n
s
: T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 d
ire

c
t c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

im
p
lic

a
tio

n
s
 a

ris
in

g
 fro

m
 th

is
 re

p
o
rt.  

H
e
a
lth

 ef
g
h
i
k  A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t S
c
re

e
n

in
g

: W
h
ils

t th
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 d
ire

c
t 

im
p
lic

a
tio

n
s
 a

ris
in

g
 fro

m
 th

is
 re

p
o
rt, th

e
re

 a
re

 e
th

ic
a
l is

s
u
e
s
 to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r m

o
re

 
g
e
n
e
ra

lly
. e

.g
.  in

v
e
s
tin

g
 in

 to
b
a
c
c
o

 s
to

c
k
s
. 



P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f F
u

n
d

 M
a
n

a
g

e
r E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t a
n

d
 V

o
tin

g
 Q

3
 2

0
1
4

J
P

 M
o

rg
a
n

S
p
o
rts

 D
ire

c
t m

a
d
e

 a
 fo

u
rth

 a
tte

m
p
t to

 g
e
t s

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
r a

p
p
ro

v
a
l fo

r a
 

c
o
n
tro

v
e
rs

ia
l p

la
n

 to
 a

w
a
rd

 u
p
 to

 G
B

P
 2

0
0

 m
illio

n
 in

 s
h
a
re

s
 to

 fo
u
n
d
e
r a

n
d

 
e
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 d

e
p
u
ty

 c
h
a
irm

a
n
 M

ik
e
 A

s
h
le

y
 a

t a
n

 e
x
tra

o
rd

in
a
ry

 g
e
n
e
ra

l m
e
e

tin
g
 

(E
G

M
) in

 J
u
ly

. A
ll p

re
v
io

u
s
 e

ffo
rts

 h
a
v
e

 e
ith

e
r b

e
e
n
 v

o
te

d
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 

s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 o
r w

ith
d
ra

w
n
. T

h
e
 k

e
y
 d

iffe
re

n
c
e
 th

is
 tim

e
 w

a
s
 th

a
t, w

h
e
re

a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
e
re

 ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

t A
s
h
le

y
 a

lo
n
e
, th

e
 la

te
s
t p

la
n
 w

a
s
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 b

ro
a
d
e
r b

o
n
u
s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 ro

lle
d
 o

u
t to

 c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 s

ta
ff (S

p
o
rts

 
D

ire
c
t h

a
s
 a

b
o
u
t 3

,0
0
0

 fu
ll-tim

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
, p

lu
s
 a

n
 e

s
tim

a
te

d
 2

0
,0

0
0
 m

o
re

 
o
n
 z

e
ro

-h
o
u
rs

 c
o
n
tra

c
ts

). A
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 fo
r s

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
a
s
 th

e
 la

c
k
 o

f 
v
is

ib
ility

 s
u
rro

u
n
d
in

g
 th

e
 e

x
te

n
t o

f A
s
h
le

y
's

 p
a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
 in

 th
e

n
e
w

 b
o
n
u
s
 p

o
o
l, a

n
d

 th
e
 la

c
k
 o

f a
 fo

rm
a
l in

d
iv

id
u
a
l lim

it. T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t, th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 s
te

a
d
fa

s
tly

 re
fu

s
e
d

 to
 re

v
e
a
l to

 s
h
a
re

h
o

ld
e
rs

 h
o
w

 
m

a
n
y
 o

f th
e
 2

5
 m

illio
n
 s

h
a
re

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 to

 A
s
h
le

y
, le

a
v
in

g
 m

a
n
y
 

s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 b
e
lie

v
in

g
 th

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
th

in
g
 m

o
re

 th
a
n
 a

n
 a

tte
m

p
t to

 c
irc

u
m

v
e
n
t 

p
la

n
 ru

le
s
 in

 o
rd

e
r to

 g
ra

n
t a

w
a
rd

s
 to

 A
s
h
le

y
 b

y
 th

e
 b

a
c
k
 d

o
o
r. T

h
e
 v

o
te

 w
a
s
 

e
v
e
n
tu

a
lly

 p
a
s
s
e
d

 b
y
 6

0
.4

%
, w

ith
 3

9
.6

%
 o

f s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 (in
c
lu

d
in

g
 J

.P
. 

M
o
rg

a
n
 A

s
s
e
t M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t) v

o
tin

g
 a

g
a
in

s
t. A

s
h
le

y
 w

a
iv

e
d
 h

is
 rig

h
t to

 
p
a
rtic

ip
a
te

 in
 th

e
 p

la
n

 tw
o
 w

e
e
k
s
 la

te
r.

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 L
ife

B
T

 c
o
n
s
u
lte

d
 w

ith
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 L
ife

 d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 q

u
a
rte

r o
n

 a
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l to

 re
b
a
la

n
c
e

 
its

 re
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

o
lic

y
 fro

m
 s

h
o
rt te

rm
 v

a
ria

b
le

 p
a
y
 to

 lo
n
g
e
r te

rm
 v

a
ria

b
le

 
p
a
y
. H

o
w

e
v
e
r, th

is
 re

s
u
lte

d
 in

 a
n

 in
c
re

a
s
e
 in

 th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t o

f v
e
s
tin

g
 fo

r th
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t o

f th
re

s
h
o
ld

 p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e

 u
n
d
e
r its

 lo
n
g

 te
rm

 in
c
e
n
tiv

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

T
h
is

 in
c
re

a
s
e
 w

a
s
 to

 a
 le

v
e
l th

a
t w

a
s
 n

o
t c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t w

ith
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 L
ife

’s
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 S

te
w

a
rd

s
h
ip

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
. S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 L
ife

 e
n
g
a
g

e
d

 w
ith

 B
T

 a
n
d
 

a
s
k
e
d
 th

a
t its

 R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
 re

v
ie

w
 th

is
 m

a
tte

r d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 

y
e
a
r s

u
c
h
 th

a
t th

e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 v
o
te

 m
o
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rtiv

e
ly

 in
 fu

tu
re

. In
 th

e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e

 o
f 

a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t w

ith
 th

e
ir g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
, S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 L
ife

 w
ill b

e
 m

in
d
e
d
 to

 
v
o
te

 a
g
a
in

s
t th

e
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n

 re
p
o
rt re

s
o
lu

tio
n

 o
r o

th
e
r re

le
v
a

n
t re

s
o
lu

tio
n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 A

G
M

 n
e
x
t y

e
a
r a

n
d
 o

n
 th

is
 b

a
s
is

 in
s
tru

c
te

d
 th

e
ir p

ro
x
y
 to

 a
b
s
ta

in
 o

n
 th

e
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

o
lic

y
 re

s
o
lu

tio
n
 th

is
 y

e
a
r.

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

N
o
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
tiv

ity
 to

 re
p
o
rt.

S
a
ra

s
in

S
a
ra

s
in

 a
re

 e
x
p
lo

rin
g
, w

ith
 o

th
e
r in

v
e
s
to

rs
, a

 p
ra

c
tic

a
l a

n
d
 e

ffe
c
tiv

e
 w

a
y
 to

 
s
tre

n
g
th

e
n
 th

e
ir s

y
s
te

m
 o

f a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ility

.

O
v
e
r th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r, B

a
n
k
 o

f A
m

e
ric

a
 a

g
re

e
d
 to

 p
a
y
 a

n
 e

y
e
-w

a
te

rin
g
 $

1
6

 b
illio

n
 

to
 d

ra
w

 a
 lin

e
 u

n
d
e
r th

e
 lo

n
g
-ru

n
n
in

g
 c

a
s
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t it fo

r m
is

-s
e
llin

g
 m

o
rtg

a
g
e
-

b
a
c
k
e
d
 s

e
c
u
ritie

s
. T

h
is

 is
 th

e
 la

rg
e
s
t in

d
iv

id
u
a
l c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 s

e
ttle

m
e

n
t e

v
e
r w

ith
 

th
e
 U

S
 D

e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t o

f J
u
s
tic

e
. A

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 to

 th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 S

c
h
o
o
l o

f E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
s
’ 

C
o
n
d
u
c
t C

o
s
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t, b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
9

 a
n
d
 th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 2
0
1
3
, te

n
 o

f th
e
 la

rg
e
s
t 



P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

lis
te

d
 b

a
n
k
s
 h

a
d
 p

a
id

, o
r p

ro
v
is

io
n
e
d

 fo
r, a

 to
ta

l o
f o

v
e
r £

1
5
5

 b
illio

n
 in

 fin
e
s
, 

s
e
ttle

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
tio

n
. S

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 –
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 ta

x
p
a
y
e
rs

 - h
a
v
e
 

b
o
rn

e
 th

e
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

, y
e
t n

o
t o

n
e
 s

e
n
io

r e
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 trie

d
 o

r g
o
n
e
 to

 ja
il. 

S
a
ra

s
in

 b
e
lie

v
e

 th
a
t ra

th
e
r th

a
n

 e
n
s
u
rin

g
 b

a
d

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r is

 s
a
n

c
tio

n
e
d
, it is

 
s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 –
 o

rd
in

a
ry

 s
a
v
e
rs

 a
n
d

 p
e
n
s
io

n
e
rs

, n
o
t e

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
s
 –

 th
a
t p

a
y
. A

 
k
e
y
 d

iffic
u
lty

 w
ith

 th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f e
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ility

 is
 th

a
t it is

 b
u
ilt 

a
ro

u
n
d
 a

 th
e
o
ry

 th
a
t s

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 –
 a

s
 th

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f ris

k
 c

a
p
ita

l –
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
a
r th

e
 c

o
s
t o

f th
e
 tra

n
s
g
re

s
s
io

n
s
, a

n
d

 th
e

 s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 in
 tu

rn
 h

o
ld

 
e
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
s
 to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t. W

h
ile

 s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 m
u
s
t c

e
rta

in
ly

 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
 d

u
e
 

d
ilig

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
ito

r th
e
 e

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
s
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 w
ith

 s
te

w
a
rd

in
g
 th

e
ir c

a
p
ita

l, 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

ris
e
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 s

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 in
 p

ra
c
tic

e
 h

a
v
e
 lim

ite
d
 s

c
o
p
e
 to

 fo
rc

e
 

a
n
 u

n
w

illin
g
 B

o
a
rd

 to
 a

c
t. S

a
ra

s
in

 b
e
lie

v
e

 th
a
t w

e
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

rriv
e
d
 a

t th
e

 
p
o
in

t w
h
e
re

 s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 g
a
in

 fro
m

 a
 c

o
u
rt c

a
s
e
 th

a
t w

o
u

ld
 b

rin
g
 

g
re

a
te

r tra
n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
 o

v
e
r e

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
s
’ b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r. 

L
o

n
g

v
ie

w
L
o
n
g
v
ie

w
 m

e
t w

ith
 C

a
ro

l A
rro

w
s
m

ith
 fro

m
 C

o
m

p
a
s
s
 in

 o
rd

e
r to

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 th

e
ir 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

o
lic

y
, w

h
ic

h
 w

ill b
e

 p
u
t to

 a
 s

h
a
re

h
o

ld
e
r v

o
te

 a
t th

e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l G

e
n
e
ra

l M
e
e
tin

g
 in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
5
.

L
o
n
g
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

ith
 C

o
m

p
a
s
s
 in

 re
la

tio
n
 to

 e
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
. In

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
, L

o
n
g
v
ie

w
 v

o
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t th

e
 D

ire
c
to

r’s
 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt, o

n
 th

e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 th

a
t d

is
c
re

tio
n
a
ry

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 
m

a
d
e
 to

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

, w
ith

o
u
t th

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 ju
s
tific

a
tio

n
. L

a
te

r th
a
t y

e
a
r, 

L
o
n
g
v
ie

w
 m

e
t w

ith
 th

e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
 to

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 C

o
m

p
a
s
s
’ firs

t 
b
in

d
in

g
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n

 p
o
lic

y
, w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 p
u
t to

 v
o
te

 in
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
. U

n
d
e
r 

U
K

 ru
le

s
, a

im
e
d
 a

t im
p
ro

v
in

g
 tra

n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
 o

n
 d

ire
c
to

r c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
tio

n
, th

e
 

p
o
lic

y
 m

u
s
t b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
r v

o
te

 a
n
d
 is

 th
e
n
 b

in
d
in

g
 fo

r 3
 

y
e
a
rs

. T
h
e

 b
in

d
in

g
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

o
lic

y
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 s

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
r v

o
te

 in
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
4
, w

ith
 L

o
n
g
v
ie

w
 v

o
tin

g
 fo

r th
e

 p
o
lic

y
.

U
n
d
e
r U

K
 ru

le
s
, if th

e
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

o
lic

y
 is

 a
m

e
n
d
e
d
, th

e
 re

v
is

e
d

 v
e
rs

io
n

 
m

u
s
t a

ls
o

 b
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
r v

o
te

, h
e
n
c
e
 C

o
m

p
a
s
s
’ e

n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 o
n
 th

e
 m

a
tte

r. L
o
n
g
v
ie

w
 th

e
re

fo
re

 q
u
e
s
tio

n
e
d
 th

e
 ra

tio
n
a
le

 
fo

r C
o
m

p
a
s
s
 re

v
is

itin
g
 its

 p
o
lic

y
 o

n
ly

 a
 fe

w
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

fte
r h

a
v
in

g
 h

a
d
 it 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. C

a
ro

l A
rro

w
s
m

ith
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 th

a
t th

e
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
 w

a
n
te

d
 th

e
 

fle
x
ib

ility
 to

 in
c
re

a
s
e
 th

e
 to

ta
l p

o
te

n
tia

l c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
tio

n
 fo

r th
e
 C

E
O

 a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 th

e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 In
c
e
n
tiv

e
 P

la
n
 (“L

T
IP

”) a
w

a
rd

 fo
r a

ll 
E

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 D

ire
c
to

rs
. T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
s
 th

a
t th

e
 E

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 T

e
a
m

 w
e
re

 
c
u
rre

n
tly

 u
n
d
e
rp

a
id

 re
la

tiv
e
 to

 th
e
ir F

T
S

E
 5

0
 p

e
e
rs

.

L
o
n
g
v
ie

w
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 th

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

o
lic

y
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o

le
 a

p
p
e
a
re

d
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 b
u
t L

o
n
g
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
d
 to

 q
u
e
s
tio

n
 w

h
y
 b

o
n
u
s
 ta

rg
e
ts

 a
re

 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 re

tro
s
p
e
c
tiv

e
ly

. L
o
n
g
v
ie

w
 a

ls
o

 m
a
d
e
 it c

le
a
r th

a
t p

e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 m
u
s
t b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 s
tru

c
tu

re
d
 to

 in
c
e
n
tiv

is
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ria

te
 c

a
p
ita

l 
a
llo

c
a
tio

n
. T

h
is

 in
c
lu

d
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
rre

c
tiv

e
ly

 in
c
e
n
tiv

is
e
d

 to
 m

a
k
e

 a
c
q
u
is

itio
n
s
 

th
a
t a

re
 v

a
lu

e
 a

c
c
re

tiv
e

 a
n
d
 to

 a
v
o
id

 a
c
q
u
is

itio
n
s
 th

a
t a

re
 n

o
t a

 g
o
o
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

’ c
a
p
ita

l.



P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 P

a
n
e
l 0

2
.1

2
.1

4

S
ta

te
 S

tre
e
t

S
ta

te
 S

tre
e
t v

o
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t th

e
 re

m
u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 re

p
o
rt a

t V
e
d
a
n

ta
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 th

e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t o

f T
o
m

 A
lb

a
n
e
s
e
 a

s
 th

e
 n

e
w

 C
E

O
. W

h
ile

 S
ta

te
 

S
tre

e
t w

e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rtiv

e
 o

f th
e

 a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t o

f th
e
 e

x
-R

io
 T

in
to

 e
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
, th

e
y
 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 th

a
t c

le
a
r d

iv
is

io
n
 o

f re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ility
 h

a
d

 n
o
t b

e
e
n
 o

u
tlin

e
d
 

g
iv

e
n
 th

e
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f th
e

 C
h
a
irm

a
n
 a

n
d
 D

e
p
u
ty

 C
h
a

irm
a
n
 fro

m
 th

e
 

c
o
n
tro

llin
g
 fa

m
ily

. T
h
is

 is
 re

fle
c
te

d
 in

 th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 e

ffe
c
tiv

e
ly

 p
a
y
in

g
 a

 C
E

O
 

le
v
e
l s

a
la

ry
 to

 a
ll th

re
e
 e

x
e
c
u
tiv

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 u
n
ju

s
tifie

d
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
e
s
 a

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 ris

k
.



 

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L
Y

 
E

N
G

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

R
E

P
O

R
T  

J
U

L
Y

 T
O

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

4
 

 

 

 
L

o
c
a
l A

u
th

o
rity

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
 

(L
A

P
F

F
) 

  

L
A

P
F

F
 e

xis
ts

 to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 th
e
 in

ve
s
tm

e
n
t in

te
re

s
ts

 o
f lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
rity 

p
e
n

sio
n

 fu
n
d

s, a
n

d
 to

 m
a

xim
is

e
 th

e
ir in

flu
e

n
ce

 a
s
 s

h
a

re
h

o
ld

e
rs

 w
h
ils

t 

p
ro

m
o
tin

g
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
re

sp
o

n
s
ib

ility 
a

n
d

 
co

rp
o
ra

te
 

g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 

a
t 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 

in
 

w
h
ich

 
th

e
y 

in
ve

st. 
F

o
rm

e
d
 

in
 

1
9

9
0
, 

L
A

P
F

F
 

b
rin

g
s
 

to
g
e

th
e
r a

 d
ive

rse
 ra

n
g
e

 o
f lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
rity p

e
n

sio
n
 fu

n
d
s
 in

 th
e

 U
K

 

w
ith

 co
m

b
in

e
d

 a
sse

ts o
f o

ve
r £

1
5
0

 b
illio

n
, w

w
w

.la
p

ffo
ru

m
.o

rg
. 

 

V
o

tin
g

 m
a
c

h
in

e
s

 a
t N

a
tio

n
a
l G

rid
 A

G
M

  



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

rt | J
u

ly
 to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 2

0
1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

a
g

e
 1

 

E
N

G
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
  

J
U

L
Y

 T
O

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

4
 

T
h
e

 F
o

ru
m

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

ith
 3

0
 c

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s
 o

ve
r th

e
 p

e
rio

d
  

  

 
 

To
p

ics

R
e
p
uta

tio
na

l risk

H
um

a
n R

ig
hts

R
e
m

une
ra

tio
n

P
a
lm

 O
il

C
lim

a
te

 C
ha

ng
e

Fina
nce

 &
 A

cco
unting

Em
p
lo

y
m

e
nt S

ta
nd

a
rd

s

C
a
m

p
a
ig

n (G
e
ne

ra
l)

Fra
cking

Ta
x

0
2

4
6

8
1
0

1
2

1
4

R
e
ce

ive
d
 Le

tte
r

A
tte

nd
e
d
 A

G
M

S
e
nt le

tte
r

S
ig

n-O
n Le

tte
r

M
e
e
ting

A
le

rt Issue
d

C
o
nfe

re
nce

 C
a
ll

A
ctiv

itie
s

C
o

m
p

a
n
y

 D
o

m
icileU

nite
d
 K

ing
d
o
m

U
nite

d
 S

ta
te

s

M
a
la

y
sia

R
e
p
ub

lic o
f K

o
re

a

S
ing

a
p
o
re

S
w

itze
rla

nd

S
w

e
d
e
n

U
K
/
N

e
the

rla
nd

s

Fra
nce

G
e
rm

a
ny

Ind
o
ne

sia

O
u

tco
m

e
D

ia
lo

g
ue

A
w

a
iting

 R
e
sp

o
nse

S
ub

sta
ntia

l 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
nt

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

Im
p
ro

ve
m

e
nt

S
m

a
ll im

p
ro

ve
m

e
nt



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e
p

o
rt | J

u
ly

 to
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
0

1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 2
 

A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

D
u
rin

g
 th

e
 Q

u
a
rte

r, L
A

P
F

F
 h

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
 co

n
s
is

te
n
t p

ro
file

, e
n
g
a

g
in

g
 o

n
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 re

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ility
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

licly
 ra

isin
g

 sig
n

ifica
n
t sh

a
re

h
o

ld
e
r iss

u
e
s
 b

y d
ire

c
t 

q
u

e
s
tio

n
in

g
 a

t co
m

p
a
n
y A

G
M

s a
s
 p

a
rt o

f th
e

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t p

ro
ce

s
s.   

• 
C

llr 
G

re
e

n
in

g
 

q
u

e
s
tio

n
e
d

 
th

e
 

b
o
a

rd
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

lin
ks

 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

e
xe

cu
tive

 
p
a

y 
a
n

d
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 

c
lim

a
te

 
ris

k
s 

a
n

d
 

m
itig

a
tio

n
 

s
tra

te
g
ie

s a
t th

e
 B

ritis
h

 L
a
n

d
 A

G
M

.   

• 
A

s
ke

d
 

th
e
 

c
h

a
ir 

o
f 

V
o

d
a
fo

n
e
 

a
t 

th
e

 
A

G
M

 
a

b
o
u
t 

e
xc

e
s
sive

 
e
xe

cu
tive

 p
a

y, g
ive

n
 th

e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y’s

 p
e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
 h

a
s
 n

o
t b

e
e

n
 

ve
ry 

s
tro

n
g
 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 

p
a
s
t 

ye
a
r. 

R
e
c
e

ive
d

 
re

s
p

o
n

se
 

to
 

C
llr 

G
re

e
n
in

g
’s q

u
e

stio
n
 th

a
t b

o
n
u

se
s
 ra

re
ly re

s
u
lt in

 a
 1

0
0
%

 p
a
yo

u
t 

a
n

d
 th

a
t th

e
 lo

n
g
 te

rm
 in

c
e
n

tive
 m

e
tric o

u
tp

e
rfo

rm
e
d

 th
e
 m

a
rk

e
t. 

• 
C

llr 
G

re
e
n

in
g
 
a
ls

o
 
q
u

e
s
tio

n
e

d
 
B

e
tfa

ir 
a

t 
its

 
A

G
M

 
o
ve

r 
ille

g
a

l 
d
ivid

e
n
d

s 
a
n

d
 
s
h
a

re
 

b
u

yb
a

ck
s
 a

fte
r L

A
P

F
F

 is
su

e
d

 a
 vo

tin
g
 a

le
rt o

n
 th

is
 to

p
ic

. 

• 
C

llr C
a

m
e

ro
n
 R

o
s
e
 a

tte
n
d
e
d

 th
e
 B

T
 G

ro
u

p
 A

G
M

 to
 a

s
k h

o
w

 th
e
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y e

n
s
u
re

s th
a

t 
its c

u
s
to

m
e

r se
rvic

e
 p

e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
 is

 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly re
fle

c
te

d
 in

 p
a
y in

ce
n
tive

s
 w

h
e

n
 th

e
 

im
p

o
rta

n
c
e

 o
f th

is
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e

d
 in

 th
e

 p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
e
tric

s. 

• 
R

a
is

e
d

 co
n
ce

rn
s
 o

ve
r re

m
u
n
e

ra
tio

n
 a

t th
e

 B
u

rb
e
rry

 A
G

M
 in

 lig
h

t 
o
f th

e
 in

cre
a
se

 in
 s

a
la

ry a
n

d
 o

th
e

r a
rra

n
g
e
m

e
n
ts fo

r th
e
 n

e
w

ly 
a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 C

E
O

 C
h
ris

to
p

h
e

r B
a

ile
y.   

• 
A

tte
n
d
e
d
 

th
e
 

N
a
tio

n
a
l 

G
rid

 
A

G
M

 
to

 
c
o
n

tin
u
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
ro

u
n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s to

w
a

rd
s
 a

ch
ie

vin
g
 a

 to
p

 le
ve

l w
ith

in
 th

e
 C

a
rb

o
n
 

D
is

c
lo

su
re

 
P

ro
je

c
t’s

 
C

lim
a
te

 
P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 
In

d
e
x. 

W
e
re

 to
ld

 th
a
t L

A
P

F
F

 w
a
s
 th

e
 firs

t in
ve

s
to

r g
ro

u
p

 to
 ra

is
e
 th

e
 

is
s
u
e

 o
f p

ro
g
re

s
s o

n
 re

p
o

rtin
g
 S

c
o
p
e
 3

 e
m

iss
io

n
s.  

• 
A

fte
r c

o
lla

b
o

ra
tive

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t o
n
 su

s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
a
lm

 o
il p

ra
c
tice

s
, S

im
e
 D

a
rb

y
, K

u
a
la

 
L

u
m

p
u

r 
B

e
rh

a
d

,  
A

s
ia

n
 

A
g

ri 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d

 
IO

I 
G

ro
u

p
 

h
a
ve

 
a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
d
 

a
n
 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 m
o
ra

to
riu

m
 o

n
 cle

a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f h
ig

h
 ca

rb
o

n
 sto

c
k fo

re
s
ts

. 

• 
M

e
t 

w
ith

 
G

4
S

’s
 
s
e
n

io
r 

in
d

e
p
e
n
d

e
n
t 

d
ire

cto
r 

to
 
d

is
c
u
s
s 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
a
t 

th
e
 
h
e
a
d
 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
a

n
y 

a
n

d
 
th

e
 
e
ffe

c
t 

o
n

 
o

p
e

ra
tio

n
a

l 
a
n
d
 
re

p
u
ta

tio
n

a
l 

ris
k 

m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
clu

d
in

g
 

c
h
a

lle
n
g
e
s
 fro

m
 co

m
p

le
x, in

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l co
n
tra

c
ts

, d
ive

rs
ity a

n
d

 s
u
c
ce

s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
.  

• 
M

e
t w

ith
 G

le
n

c
o

re
 fo

r a
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 tim

e
 o

n
 c

a
rb

o
n

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t w
ith

in
 th

e
 A

im
in

g
 fo

r A
 

in
ve

s
to

r 
in

itia
tive

, 
a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

ra
is

in
g
 
o
th

e
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 
g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 
ris

k 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
c
o
n

ce
rn

s
.  

• 
P

u
rsu

e
d

 p
re

vio
u

s e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t w

ith
 
B

A
E

 b
y m

e
e

tin
g
 w

ith
 th

e
 ch

a
ir, S

ir R
o
g
e
r C

a
rr. 

T
o
p
ics

 c
o
ve

re
d
 a

n
ti-c

o
rru

p
tio

n
 p

ro
ce

sse
s, e

xe
c
u
tive

 p
a
y a

n
d
 g

e
n

d
e

r d
ive

rs
ity a

t b
o
a

rd
 

le
ve

l a
s
 w

e
ll a

s
 th

ro
u
g
h
o

u
t th

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y.  

      N
a
tio

n
a
l G

rid
  A

G
M

 

B
ritis

h
 L

a
n

d A
G

M
 



 
 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
r

T
H

E
 F

O
R

U
M

 I
 

  

 
           

0 2 4 6 8

1
0

1
2

1
4

L
A

P
F

F

L
o
c
a
l G

o
ve

rn

L
A

P
F

F
 ta

rg
e

C
ity A

.M
.
,
 R

e
u

te
rs

,
 In

vS
t

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l P

e
n
s
io

 S
u

n
d

a
y T

e
le

g
ra

p
h

,
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

r

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 

 IN
 T

H
E

 N
E

W
S

 

 

F
F

 P
re

s
s
 M

e
n

tio
n

s
, Q

3
 2

0
1

 
 D

ire
cto

r R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

tio
n

 
L

e
xo

lo
g
y 

 
L
o

ca
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t P
e

n
sio

n
 S

c
h
e

m
e
s 

rn
m

e
n

t C
h
ro

n
icle

, In
ve

stm
e
n
t a

n
d
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 

rg
e
ts S

p
o

rts
D

ire
c
t o

ve
r M

ik
e

 A
s
h
le

y’s
 p

a
y p

n
ve

stm
e
n
t &

 P
e
n

sio
n

s
 E

u
ro

p
e

,
 T

h
e
 G

u
a
rd

i
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

,
 T

h
e
 J

o
u
rn

a
l, E

xp
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 S

ta
r 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
ve

rn
a
n

ce
 C

o
d
e
 

F
in

a
n

cia
l T

im
e

s
, A

c
co

u
n
ta

n
c
y A

g
e
 

IF
R

S
 F

a
ilin

g
s
 

s
io

n
s, In

ve
stm

e
n
t a

n
d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 E

u
ro

p
e
, F

i

B
e
tfa

ir 
,
 S

B
C

 N
e
w

s
, e

c
o
n

o
m

ia
, F

in
a
n

cia
l N

e
w

s, S
C

h
in

e
se

 p
re

ss.   
 

o
rt | J

u
ly

 to
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
0

1
4

 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 3
 

 

 

0
1
4

io
n

s E
u
ro

p
e
 

y p
a

ck
a

g
e
 

rd
ia

n
,
 B

B
C

,
 E

ve
n

in
g
 

F
in

a
n

cia
l D

ire
c
to

r 

S
h
a

re
s
 M

a
g
a
zin

e
 



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

rt | J
u

ly
 to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 2

0
1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

a
g

e
 4

 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 E

N
G

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

LEA
D

ER
S
H

IP
 O

N
 K

EY
 C

A
M

P
A

IG
N

S
  

T
h
e
 iss

u
e
 o

f th
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
tio

n
 a

n
d

 sa
le

 o
f c

lu
ste

r m
u
n

itio
n
s
 w

a
s
 ra

ise
d
 a

t th
e
 Ju

n
e
 e

xe
cu

tive
 

m
e
e
tin

g
s a

n
d

 L
A

P
F

F
 a

g
re

e
d

 to
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
ith

 n
in

e
 a

e
ro

s
p
a

ce
 a

n
d

 d
e
fe

n
ce

 c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
s
 o

ve
r th

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 
a

n
d
 
s
a

le
 
o
f 

c
lu

s
te

r 
m

u
n
itio

n
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 
co

n
ce

rn
 
is

 
th

a
t 

th
e

se
 
w

e
a

p
o
n
s
 
k
ill 

p
e

o
p
le

 

in
d
is

crim
in

a
te

ly a
n

d
 th

a
t th

e
y c

o
n

tin
u
e
 to

 b
e
 d

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s
 a

fte
r c

o
n
flicts h

a
ve

 e
n
d

e
d

.  O
f th

e
 

c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 co

n
ta

cte
d

 –
 T

e
x
tro

n
, A

T
K

, L
-3

, G
e
n

e
ra

l D
y
n

a
m

ic
s
, L

o
c
k
h

e
e
d

 M
a
rtin

, D
o

o
s
a
n

, 

H
a
n

w
h

a
 

a
n
d
 

S
in

g
a
p

o
re

 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 

–
 

fo
u

r 
h
a

ve
 

re
s
p

o
n
d
e

d
 

to
 

le
tte

rs 
re

q
u
e
stin

g
 

c
o
n
firm

a
tio

n
 th

a
t th

e
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s d

o
 n

o
t p

ro
d
u

ce
 o

r s
e
ll c

lu
ste

r m
u
n
itio

n
s.   

B
y a

n
d
 la

rg
e

, th
e
 re

sp
o
n

s
e
s
 re

c
e
ive

d
 so

 fa
r sta

te
 th

a
t th

e
 co

m
p
a

n
ie

s
 d

o
 n

o
t p

ro
d
u
c
e
 o

r s
e
ll 

c
lu

ste
r m

u
n

itio
n
s w

ith
in

 th
e
 d

e
fin

itio
n

 o
f th

e
 O

slo
 C

o
n
ve

n
tio

n
.  H

o
w

e
ve

r, n
e

ith
e

r th
e

 U
.S

. n
o

r 

S
o

u
th

 K
o

re
a
 –

 b
o

th
 o

f w
h
ich

 a
re

 m
a
jo

r clie
n
ts

 o
f th

e
s
e

 firm
s
 –

 h
a

ve
 ra

tifie
d

 o
r a

c
c
e
d
e
d

 to
 th

e
 

O
s
lo

 C
o
n

ve
n
tio

n
.  T

h
is la

c
k
 o

f s
ta

te
 co

m
m

itm
e
n
t to

 th
e
 la

w
 m

a
ke

s it m
o
re

 d
iffic

u
lt to

 d
is

c
e
rn

 

th
e
 e

xte
n
t o

f co
m

p
a

n
ie

s
’ in

vo
lve

m
e
n

t. 

A
 m

e
e
tin

g
 w

a
s h

e
ld

 w
ith

 th
e
 c

h
a
ir o

f B
A

E
, S

ir R
o

g
e

r C
a

rr, to
 d

is
c
u
s
s clu

s
te

r m
u
n

itio
n

s a
n

d
 to

 

fo
llo

w
 u

p
 fro

m
 p

re
vio

u
s
 m

e
e

tin
g
s w

ith
 th

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y. S
ir R

o
g
e
r p

ro
vid

e
d
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
s
 th

a
t B

A
E

 

is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly c

o
m

p
lia

n
t w

ith
 th

e
 te

rm
s
 o

f th
e

 O
slo

 C
o

n
ve

n
tio

n
, w

h
ic

h
 is th

e
 in

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l la
w

 

th
a
t b

a
n

s
 c

lu
s
te

r m
u
n
itio

n
s
. T

h
e
 m

e
e
tin

g
 g

a
ve

 th
e

 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity to

 a
s
se

s
s p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

n
ti-

c
o
rru

p
tio

n
 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s
, 

lo
o

ke
d

 
a
t 

s
im

p
lifica

tio
n
 

o
f 

p
a

y 
a
rra

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts 

a
n
d

 
a
s
se

s
s
e
d
 

th
e

 

m
e
a

su
re

s B
A

E
 w

a
s
 p

u
ttin

g
 in

 p
la

c
e
 to

 e
n

su
re

 n
o
t o

n
ly b

o
a
rd

 d
ive

rs
ity, b

u
t g

e
n

d
e

r d
ive

rs
ity

 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t th
e

 co
m

p
a
n

y.  

P
R
O

M
O

TIN
G

 G
O

O
D

 G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E 

E
x

e
c

u
tiv

e
 P

a
y

 

L
A

P
F

F
 

co
n

tin
u
e

s 
to

 
p

u
sh

 
co

m
p
a

n
ie

s 
o
n
 

th
e
ir 

e
xe

cu
tive

 
p
a
y
 

a
rra

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
, 

e
s
p
e

cia
lly 

in
 

re
la

tio
n

 
to

 
re

w
a
rd

s 
fo

r 
su

b
-p

a
r 

p
e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
 

a
n
d

 
o
n
 

co
m

p
le

xity. 
 

A
t 

th
e
 

V
o

d
a
fo

n
e
 

A
G

M
, 

C
llr 

G
re

e
n

in
g
 a

s
k
e
d

 C
h

a
irm

a
n

 G
e

ra
rd

 K
le

iste
rle

e
 h

o
w

 th
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y 

c
o
u

ld
 
h

a
ve

 
re

w
a
rd

e
d
 
its

 
e
xe

c
u
tive

s
 
w

ith
 
va

ria
b
le

 
p
a

y 
w

h
e
n

 
th

e
 

fin
a

n
c
ia

ls
 fo

r th
e

 ye
a

r w
e

re
 n

o
t g

o
o
d

. M
r K

le
is

te
rle

e
 re

s
p
o

n
d
e
d

 th
a
t 

b
o
n
u
s
 p

a
ym

e
n

ts ra
re

ly
 re

a
c
h

 a
 1

0
0
%

 p
a
yo

u
t a

n
d

 th
a
t m

e
tric

s in
fo

rm
in

g
 th

e
 lo

n
g
 te

rm
 in

c
e
n
tive

 

p
la

n
 o

u
tp

e
rfo

rm
e

d
 th

e
 m

a
rke

t.  H
o
w

e
ve

r, h
e

 d
id

 n
o

t a
d
d

re
ss

 th
e
 la

ck
 o

f a
 lin

k
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
y a

n
d

 

p
e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
.   

A
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 m

e
e
tin

g
 w

ith
 th

e
 s

e
n

io
r in

d
e

p
e
n
d
e
n

t d
ire

c
to

r o
f G

4
S

, a
im

e
d

 to
 a

s
ce

rta
in

 w
h
e

th
e

r 

c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 
a
t 

th
e
 
h
e

a
d
 
o
f 

th
e
 
C

o
m

p
a
n

y 
h

a
ve

 
le

d
 to

 
b
e

tte
r 

o
p
e

ra
tio

n
a

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 
th

e
 



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

rt | J
u

ly
 to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 2

0
1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

a
g

e
 5

 

g
ro

u
n
d

 a
n
d
 h

a
ve

 le
s
se

n
e

d
 re

p
u
ta

tio
n

a
l ris

k
. T

h
e
 n

e
w

 c
h
ie

f e
xe

c
u
tive

, M
r A

lm
a

n
za

, a
p

p
e
a
rs

 to
 

b
e
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

ig
n
ific

a
n
t c

h
a

n
g
e
s
, a

n
d

 p
o

st-O
lym

p
ic

s
, th

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y b
e
lie

ve
s th

e
re

 is
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 

c
o
n

tra
ct a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 g

re
a

te
r s

cru
tin

y o
f co

n
tra

c
ts w

ith
 n

e
w

ly e
sta

b
lis

h
e

d
 ris

k co
m

m
itte

e
s
 a

t 

th
e
 e

xe
c
u
tive

 a
n
d

 b
o
a
rd

 le
ve

ls to
 d

e
a

l w
ith

 co
m

p
le

x c
o
n

tra
c
ts

.  L
A

P
F

F
 a

g
a

in
 ra

is
e
d

 th
e
 iss

u
e

 

o
f p

a
y c

o
m

p
le

xity. T
h

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y h
a

s e
n

g
a

g
e
d
 e

xte
n

sive
ly w

ith
 its

 m
a

jo
r sh

a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs, b

u
t h

a
s
 

c
o
m

e
 u

p
 a

g
a
in

st o
p
p

o
s
in

g
 in

ve
sto

r o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 m

e
tric

s
. A

 fo
llo

w
-u

p
 p

h
o
n

e
 ca

ll e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 th

a
t 

s
o
m

e
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f th
e

 E
P

S
 a

d
ju

stm
e
n
ts w

e
re

 c
o
n
fu

sin
g
 a

n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 re

m
o
ve

d
.  

C
o

m
p

le
x p

a
y a

rra
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts a

re
 a

lso
 o

f c
o
n

ce
rn

 a
t H

a
y
s
. H

a
ys

’ sc
h

e
m

e
 is

 p
ro

b
le

m
a

tic in
 th

a
t it 

h
a
s
 to

o
 m

a
n

y co
m

p
o

n
e

n
ts

, s
ix in

 to
ta

l, th
u

s m
a

kin
g
 it d

ifficu
lt fo

r in
ve

s
to

rs to
 tra

c
k p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r th

e
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 d
e
s
e

rve
d
. L

A
P

F
F

 
h
a

s 
w

ritte
n
 
to

 th
e
 
c
o
m

p
a
n

y 
s
e
e

kin
g
 a

 

m
e
e
tin

g
.  A

t th
e

 
B

T
 A

G
M

, C
llr R

o
se

 a
s
ke

d
 h

o
w

 p
a

y in
c
e
n

tive
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 im

p
ro

ve
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

s
e
rvic

e
 g

ive
n
 th

a
t th

e
 re

la
tive

 im
p
o

rta
n
c
e
 o

f c
u

sto
m

e
r s

e
rvice

 h
a
s
 d

ro
p
p
e
d

 in
 th

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y’s

 

p
e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
 m

e
tric

s
 fo

r e
xe

c
u
tive

s
. 

R
e

lia
b

le
 A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 

B
e
tfa

ir 
h

a
s
 
s
ta

te
d
 

in
 

its 
A

n
n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt 
th

a
t 

it 
p
a

id
 
ille

g
a

l 
d
ivid

e
n
d

s
 
a
n
d

 
s
h
a

re
 

b
u

yb
a

ck
 

d
is

trib
u
tio

n
s
 fo

r th
e

 ye
a
rs

 2
0
1

1
, 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
3

.  L
A

P
F

F
 iss

u
e
d

 a
 vo

tin
g

 a
le

rt a
h

e
a
d
 o

f th
e

 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
A

G
M

 
a
im

in
g
 

to
 

h
o

ld
 

re
le

va
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs 
re

sp
o
n

sib
le

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

d
istrib

u
tio

n
 

p
a
ym

e
n

ts. T
h
e

 a
le

rt in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a
tio

n
 to

 a
b
s
ta

in
 o

n
 th

e
 re

s
o
lu

tio
n

 a
p

p
ro

vin
g
 th

e
 

p
a
ym

e
n

t o
f d

ivid
e

n
d

s
 fo

r th
e

 ye
a

r u
n
d

e
r re

vie
w

 a
s
 it is

 n
o

t c
le

a
r th

a
t th

e
 a

c
co

u
n
tin

g
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 

h
a
ve

 
b
e
e
n

 
re

m
e

d
ie

d
.  

It a
p
p

e
a

rs
 th

a
t 

th
e

 ille
g
a
l d

ivid
e
n

d
s 

w
e
re

 
p
a

id
 in

 p
a
rt b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 
th

e
 

C
o

m
p
a
n

y’s
 a

c
co

u
n
ts w

e
re

 n
o
t a

u
d
ite

d
 in

 lin
e
 w

ith
 th

e
 ‘tru

e
 a

n
d
 fa

ir vie
w

’ s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 se
t a

t la
w

.   

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 EN

V
IR

O
N

M
EN

TA
L R

IS
K

 

P
a

lm
 o

il  

L
A

P
F

F
’s

 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 
c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
s 

to
 

e
n

co
u
ra

g
e
 

s
u

sta
in

a
b
le

 

p
a
lm

 o
il p

ro
d

u
ctio

n
 a

n
d
 su

p
p

lie
s
 h

a
s
 m

e
t so

m
e
 s

u
cc

e
s
s.  A

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

p
a
lm

 o
il g

ro
w

e
rs

, in
clu

d
in

g
 S

im
e
 D

a
rb

y
, K

u
a
la

 L
u

m
p

u
r 

B
e
rh

a
d

, 

A
s

ia
n

 
A

g
ri 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
a

n
d

 
IO

I 
G

ro
u

p
, 

re
le

a
s
e
d

 
a

 
‘S

u
sta

in
a

b
le

 

P
a

lm
 

O
il 

M
a
n

ife
sto

’ 
d

ire
cte

d
 

a
t 

e
n

su
rin

g
 

fu
tu

re
 

p
a
lm

 
o
il 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
ts 

a
re

 
su

b
je

c
t 

to
 

h
ig

h
 

sta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

o
f 

e
n

viro
n
m

e
n

ta
l 

p
ro

te
c
tio

n
 
a
n
d
 
lim

it 
d
e
fo

re
s
ta

tio
n
.  

W
h
ile

 
th

e
 
M

a
n

ife
s
to

 
m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 

re
g
a

rd
e

d
 a

s
 a

 ste
p

 fo
rw

a
rd

, L
A

P
F

F
 s

h
a

re
d
 co

n
c
e
rn

s th
a

t it d
o
e

s n
o
t 

s
e
t th

e
 sa

m
e
 s

tro
n
g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

s th
o

se
 fo

llo
w

e
d
 b

y m
a

jo
r in

d
u
s
try le

a
d
e

rs w
h
o

m
 th

e
 F

o
ru

m
 

h
a
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rte
d
 su

ch
 a

s W
ilm

a
r a

n
d
 G

o
ld

e
n

-A
g
ri.  

T
h
e
 M

a
n
ife

s
to

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t a

d
e

q
u
a
te

ly e
xte

n
d
 to

 th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s’ th

ird
 p

a
rty s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 o

r p
ro

te
c
t 

p
e
a

tla
n
d

s a
n
d

 a
llo

w
e
d

 th
e

 co
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 to

 co
n
tin

u
e
 d

e
fo

re
sta

tio
n

 w
h
ile

 d
e
fin

itio
n
a
l is

su
e
s
 a

re
 

re
so

lve
d

.  L
A

P
F

F
 a

g
a
in

 co
-s

ig
n
e

d
 le

tte
rs

 w
ith

 G
re

e
n
 C

e
n
tu

ry C
a

p
ita

l M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t to

 ra
ise

 

th
e
s
e
 co

n
ce

rn
s
 w

ith
 th

e
se

 c
o
m

p
a
n

ie
s, se

e
k
in

g
 a

n
 im

m
e
d

ia
te

 m
o
ra

to
riu

m
 o

n
 d

e
fo

re
sta

tio
n
 a

n
d

 



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

rt | J
u

ly
 to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 2

0
1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

a
g

e
 6

 

re
q
u

e
s
te

d
 

th
e

 
co

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

a
d
o
p

t 
a
 

tim
e
-b

o
u
n

d
 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

fu
lly 

tra
ce

a
b

le
 

p
a
lm

 
o
il. 

B
y 

m
id

-

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f th

e
 P

a
lm

 O
il M

a
n
ife

sto
 G

ro
u
p

 a
n

n
o
u

n
ce

d
 th

a
t th

e
y w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
tin

g
 

a
n
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
 m

o
ra

to
riu

m
 o

n
 c

le
a
ra

n
ce

 o
f h

ig
h
 c

a
rb

o
n
 s

to
c
k fo

re
sts. 

L
A

P
F

F
 is

 c
o

n
tin

u
in

g
 to

 w
o
rk

 w
ith

 th
e
 P

R
I In

v
e
s
to

r G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 is

 p
a

rticip
a

tin
g
 in

 co
lle

c
tive

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t w
ith

 th
e
 la

rg
e

st b
u

ye
r o

f p
a
lm

 o
il fro

m
 a

n
 In

d
o

n
e
s
ia

n
 su

p
p

lie
r o

n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 to

 fin
d
 a

 

w
a

y to
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
ith

 th
a
t s

u
p
p
lie

r o
ve

r c
o
n

c
e
rn

s w
ith

 its
 p

ra
c
tic

e
s
 fo

r p
a

lm
 o

il p
ro

d
u

ctio
n
. 

E
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
iro

n
m

e
n

ta
l R

is
k

   L
A

P
F

F
 h

a
s co

n
tin

u
e
d

 to
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 o

n
 clim

a
te

 ris
ks

 

a
t A

G
M

s d
u
rin

g
 th

e
 2

0
1
4

 s
e
a

so
n
.  A

t th
e
 B

ritis
h

 

L
a
n

d
 

A
G

M
, 

C
llr 

G
re

e
n

in
g
 

fo
c
u
s
se

d
 

o
n
 

th
e

 

e
xte

n
t 

to
 
w

h
ic

h
 

th
e
 
C

o
m

p
a
n

y 
h
a

s 
c
o
n

sid
e

re
d
 

fu
tu

re
 

c
lim

a
te

 
im

p
a
c
ts

 
in

 
la

n
d

 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
 

a
n
d
 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
ts, p

a
rtic

u
la

rly flo
o

d
 a

n
d

 in
u
n
d

a
tio

n
 

ris
k
. 

T
h

e
 

b
o
a

rd
 

w
a

s
 

a
ls

o
 

a
s
ke

d
 

a
b
o

u
t 

th
e
 

C
o
m

p
a
n

y’s 
in

flu
e
n

ce
 

w
ith

 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ritie

s
 

to
 

im
p

ro
ve

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ility a
n

d
 re

silie
n

ce
 fa

c
to

rs
 in

 h
o
u

sin
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n

ts. T
h
e

 

c
o
n

ce
rn

 is
 th

a
t if clim

a
te

 im
p
a

cts h
a
ve

 n
o
t b

e
e
n

 co
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

d
e
q
u
a

te
ly, b

o
th

 in
 lo

ca
tio

n
 a

n
d

 

d
e
s
ig

n
, B

ritis
h
 L

a
n
d
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 co
u

ld
 fa

ce
 lo

n
g
e
r te

rm
 ris

ks
 fro

m
 e

xtre
m

e
 w

e
a

th
e

r o
r o

th
e

r 

e
n
viro

n
m

e
n
ta

l im
p
a

cts.  If th
e
se

 ris
ks

 m
a

te
ria

lis
e

, th
e
y c

o
u

ld
 a

ffe
ct sh

a
re

h
o
ld

e
r va

lu
e

. 

T
h

is
 e

xte
n

d
e

d
 n

o
tio

n
 o

f c
lim

a
te

 risk
s
 w

a
s
 re

fle
c
te

d
 in

 th
e
 q

u
e
s
tio

n
 a

sk
e
d

 to
 S

ir P
e

te
r G

e
rsh

o
n
, 

th
e
 N

a
tio

n
a
l G

rid
 ch

a
irm

a
n

, a
t th

e
 co

m
p

a
n

y’s A
G

M
 re

g
a
rd

in
g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n

t a
n
d
 re

p
o
rtin

g
 o

f 

S
c
o
p

e
 3

 e
m

is
sio

n
s
.  T

o
 d

a
te

, m
o

st co
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 h

a
ve

 fo
c
u
s
e
d
 re

p
o
rtin

g
 o

n
 S

c
o
p
e
 1

 a
n
d

 2
 

e
m

iss
io

n
s.  H

o
w

e
ve

r, it is
 im

p
o
rta

n
t to

 re
co

g
n
ise

 th
a
t co

m
p

a
n
y e

m
is

s
io

n
 p

ro
file

s e
n

co
m

p
a

ss 

th
e
ir su

p
p

ly ch
a
in

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
jo

r co
n
tra

c
to

rs
, o

r S
c
o
p

e
 3

 

e
m

iss
io

n
s. 

T
h

is
 

A
G

M
 

a
tte

n
d
a
n

ce
 

c
o
n

tin
u
e

s 
L
A

P
F

F
’s 

p
a
rticip

a
tio

n
 

in
 

th
e

 
‘A

im
in

g
 

fo
r 

A
’ 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 

e
n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
s
 

c
o

m
p
a
n
y 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e

 
C

a
rb

o
n
 

D
isc

lo
su

re
 

P
ro

je
c
t’s 

C
lim

a
te

 
P

e
rfo

rm
a

n
c
e
 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 

In
d
e

x. T
h

e
 C

h
a
ir, S

ir P
e
te

r G
e

rsh
o
n
, n

o
te

d
 th

a
t L

A
P

F
F

 

w
a

s th
e

 first in
ve

s
to

r g
ro

u
p

 to
 ra

is
e
 th

e
 is

s
u
e
 o

f p
ro

g
re

s
s 

o
n
 m

o
n

ito
rin

g
 S

c
o
p
e
 3

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
.  Id

e
n
tifyin

g
 th

e
 e

m
iss

io
n
s p

ro
file

s g
e
n

e
ra

te
d

 th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 

c
o
m

p
le

x 
su

p
p

ly 
c
h

a
in

s
 
a

ls
o
 
h
e

lp
s
 
to

 
b

e
g
in

 
to

 
a
d

d
re

s
s 

th
e
 
d
e

e
p
e
r 

is
s
u
e

s 
o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 
risk

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t a

n
d

 th
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t o

f a
d

a
p

ta
tio

n
 a

n
d

 re
s
ilie

n
c
e
 m

e
a

s
u
re

s c
ritic

a
l to

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

s
u
p

p
ly co

m
p
a

n
ie

s
 o

p
e
ra

tin
g
 vita

l in
fra

s
tru

c
tu

re
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
.  

L
A

P
F

F
 co

n
tin

u
e
d
 its

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t w

ith
 G

le
n

c
o

re
 o

n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e

n
t w

ith
in

 a
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 

o
n
 th

e
 o

ve
ra

ll e
n

viro
n

m
e
n
ta

l, so
c
ia

l a
n
d
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 risk
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t p

ro
ce

s
se

s
.  Q

u
e
s
tio

n
s 

w
e

re
 p

o
s
e

d
 b

o
th

 a
t a

 s
u

sta
in

a
b

ility p
re

s
e

n
ta

tio
n
 a

n
d
 a

 se
p
a

ra
te

 m
e

e
tin

g
 w

ith
 th

e
 h

e
a
d

 o
f th

e
 

b
o
a

rd
 
e
n

viro
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 
sa

fe
ty 

c
o
m

m
itte

e
. 

O
n
 
its 

ca
rb

o
n
 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t, 

th
e
 
co

m
p
a
n
y 

w
a
s
 

e
n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
d

 to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 e

m
is

sio
n

s re
d
u

c
tio

n
 in

itia
tive

s a
n
d
 s

e
t a

sso
cia

te
d

 ta
rg

e
ts

 in
 o

rd
e
r to

 



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

rt | J
u

ly
 to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 2

0
1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

a
g

e
 7

 

a
n
d

 to
 cle

a
rly id

e
n
tify lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 th
e
 in

itia
tive

s a
n

d
 re

d
u

c
tio

n
s m

a
d

e
. C

lo
s
e
r q

u
e

s
tio

n
in

g
 o

n
 

p
e
rfo

rm
a
n

ce
 a

g
a
in

s
t h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d
 sa

fe
ty m

e
tric

s
 in

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 m
o
re

 e
ffe

ctive
 m

o
n

ito
rin

g
 s

ys
te

m
 

b
e
in

g
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. O

n
 b

o
a
rd

 g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
, su

cc
e

ss
io

n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 g

e
n

d
e

r a
n
d

 o
th

e
r a

sp
e
c
ts 

o
f d

ive
rs

ity w
e
re

 a
d
d

re
s
s
e
d

.  

TA
R
G

ETIN
G

 S
O

C
IA

L IS
S
U

ES
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
  

T
h
e
 is

su
e
 o

f m
o
d

e
rn

 d
a
y s

la
ve

ry is
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 to

 ris
e

 

o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s’ ra

d
a

rs.  R
e

ce
n
t re

p
o

rts
 o

n
 A

s
ia

n
 sla

ve
 

la
b
o

u
r 

h
e
lp

in
g
 
to

 
p

ro
d
u

ce
 
p

ra
w

n
s
 
d

e
s
tin

e
d
 
fo

r 
U

S
 

a
n
d

 
U

K
 

s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
ts

 
a

n
d
 

th
e
 

U
K

 
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’s 

M
o
d

e
rn

 S
la

ve
ry B

ill, in
tro

d
u
ce

d
 in

 Ju
n
e

 h
a
s
 g

ive
n
 a

 

g
re

a
te

r fo
c
u
s o

n
 tra

n
sp

a
re

n
c
y in

 s
u
p

p
ly c

h
a
in

s. F
o
r 

e
xtra

c
tive

 
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
s
u

ch
 

a
s 

G
le

n
c
o
re

, 
c
o
n

c
e
rn

s 

in
c
lu

d
e
 ch

ild
 la

b
o
u

r, a
rtis

in
a
l m

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
xp

o
su

re
 to

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
ris

ks
 

p
a
rticu

la
rly 

in
 

c
o

u
n

trie
s
 

su
c
h
 

a
s 

M
a
u

rita
n

ia
.  

S
o

c
ia

l a
n

d
 R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n

a
l R

is
k

s
 

L
A

P
F

F
 co

n
tin

u
e

s to
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

ith
 a

 ra
n

g
e

 o
f sta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 in
 o

rd
e
r to

 in
fo

rm
 b

e
tte

r ca
m

p
a

ig
n

 

a
n
d

 
e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e

s. 
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 

S
a

h
a

ra
 

R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
 

W
a
tch

 
(W

S
R

W
) 

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 

a
 

m
e
e
tin

g
 to

 e
xp

la
in

 its
 p

o
s
itio

n
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y e
n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t in

 W
e
s
te

rn
 S

a
h
a

ra
.  C

itin
g
 a

 U
N

 le
g
a

l 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 W

e
ste

rn
 S

a
h
a

ra
’s rig

h
t to

 e
xp

lo
it its n

a
tu

ra
l re

so
u
rce

s a
s a

 N
o
n

-S
e

lf-G
o

ve
rn

in
g
 

T
e

rrito
ry, th

e
 o

rg
a

n
isa

tio
n

 ta
ke

s th
e

 s
ta

n
c
e
 th

a
t M

o
ro

c
c
o
 is ille

g
a
lly o

cc
u
p

yin
g
 W

e
ste

rn
 S

a
h

a
ra

 

a
n
d

 th
a
t th

e
re

fo
re

 fo
re

ig
n

 c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
, p

a
rtic

u
la

rly
 p

h
o
s
p
h
a

te
 a

n
d

 o
il co

m
p
a

n
ie

s, s
h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t b
e

 

s
ig

n
in

g
 co

n
tra

c
ts

 w
ith

 M
o

ro
c
c
o
 in

 re
la

tio
n

 to
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 in
 W

e
s
te

rn
 S

a
h

a
ra

.  W
S

R
W

 w
o
u

ld
 like

 to
 

s
e
e

 
th

e
 
p

o
litica

l 
situ

a
tio

n
 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 
M

o
ro

cco
 
a

n
d

 
W

e
ste

rn
 
S

a
h

a
ra

 
re

s
o
lve

d
 
b

e
fo

re
 
fo

re
ig

n
 

c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s 
u
n

d
e

rta
ke

 
p

ro
je

c
ts 

in
 
W

e
ste

rn
 

S
a
h
a
ra

. 
It 

b
e

lie
ve

s
 
th

is
 

re
s
o
lu

tio
n
 

w
o
u

ld
 
a

llo
w

 

c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

s to
 e

n
g
a
g
e

 w
ith

 S
a
h

a
ra

w
is

 to
 e

n
su

re
 th

a
t p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 m
u

tu
a

lly b
e

n
e
fic

ia
l.   

  
 

"It is d
iffic

u
lt to

 a
c
ce

p
t th

a
t m

o
d

e
rn

 

B
rita

in
 is

 h
o
m

e
 to

 sla
ve

ry, b
u

t th
is

 

a
p

p
a

llin
g
 c

rim
e

 is ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 

h
e
re

 - o
fte

n
 o

u
t o

f sig
h

t - in
 sh

o
p

s
, 

fie
ld

s, b
u

ild
in

g
 s

ite
s a

n
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 

th
e
 cu

rta
in

s o
f h

o
u
se

s
 o

n
 o

rd
in

a
ry 

s
tre

e
ts" (H

o
m

e
 S

e
cre

ta
ry T

h
e
re

sa
 

M
a
y, B

B
C

, 3
1
 Ju

ly 2
0
1
4
)  



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e
p

o
rt | J

u
ly

 to
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
0

1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 8
 

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
S

 &
 P

U
B

L
IC

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 

EN
G

A
G

IN
G

 W
ITH

 P
O

LIC
Y

-M
A

K
ER

S
 

L
A

P
F

F
 
h

a
s
 
co

-sig
n

e
d
 
a
 
le

tte
r to

 
th

e
 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l 
O

rg
a

n
isa

tio
n
 
o
f 

S
e
cu

ritie
s
 
C

o
m

m
is

sio
n

s 

(IO
S

C
O

) to
 s

u
p
p
o

rt w
o

rk
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e

ly w
ith

 re
g
u

la
to

rs
, s

to
ck

 e
xc

h
a

n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r re

la
te

d
 

p
a

rtie
s
 to

 im
p
ro

ve
 th

e
 d

is
c
lo

su
re

 o
f m

a
te

ria
l a

n
d
 h

ig
h
-q

u
a

lity co
rp

o
ra

te
 E

n
viro

n
m

e
n
ta

l, S
o
c
ia

l 

a
n

d
 G

o
ve

rn
a
n

ce
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 in

 th
e
 g

lo
b

a
l m

a
rk

e
tp

la
ce

.  

L
A

P
F

F
 h

o
ste

d
 frin

g
e
 m

e
e
tin

g
s a

t th
e

 L
a
b

o
u

r P
a
rty

 C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 th

e
 C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
tiv

e
 P

a
rty

 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
 o

n
 ‘T

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

 o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t P

e
n

sio
n

 S
c
h
e

m
e
.’  S

p
e

a
ke

rs in
c
lu

d
e

d
 

th
e
 L

A
P

F
F

 c
h
a

ir, C
llr K

ie
ra

n
 Q

u
in

n
, H

e
n
ry B

o
u
c
h
e

r o
f S

a
ra

sin
 a

n
d
 P

a
rtn

e
rs

 a
n
d

 C
llr D

e
n
ise

 L
e
 

G
a
l, C

h
a
ir, S

u
rre

y P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
. 

N
E

T
W

O
R

K
S

 &
 E

V
E

N
T

S
 

 

� 
3
0

%
 C

lu
b

 In
v
e
s

to
r G

ro
u

p
 –

 ‘N
e
xt s

te
p
s fo

r a
c
ce

le
ra

tin
g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
’ w

ith
 C

E
O

 o
f 

W
o
m

e
n
 o

n
 B

o
a
rd

s 

� 
G

le
n

c
o

re
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ility
 

P
re

s
e
n

ta
tio

n
 

b
y
 

T
o

n
y 

H
a

yw
a

rd
 

(C
h
a

irm
a

n
), 

Iva
n
 

G
la

se
n
b

e
rg

 (C
E

O
) a

n
d
 P

e
te

r C
o
a

te
s
 (C

h
a
ir o

f H
S

E
C

 C
o

m
m

itte
e
) 

� 
C

C
L

A
 –

 e
ve

n
t h

ig
h

lig
h

tin
g
 th

e
 im

p
o
rta

n
ce

 o
f c

o
lle

ctive
 a

ctio
n
 o

n
 clim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 

h
o

s
te

d
 b

y S
t P

a
u
l’s

/C
C

L
A

.  

� 
T

h
re

a
d

n
e

e
d

le
/U

K
S

IF
 e

ve
n
t o

n
 U

K
 p

re
p

a
ra

tio
n

s fo
r fra

ck
in

g
 

� 
C

liffo
rd

 
C

h
a
n

c
e
 

–
 

s
e
m

in
a

r 
o
n

 
w

h
e

th
e
r 

a
n
 

a
rb

itra
tio

n
 

trib
u
n

a
l 

sim
ila

r 
to

 
in

ve
s
tm

e
n

t trib
u

n
a

ls
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 fe

a
s
ib

le
 fo

r h
u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 

� 
P

R
I in

 P
e
rs

o
n

, M
o

n
tre

a
l –

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 d

e
b

a
te

s o
n

 fo
s
s
il fu

e
l d

ive
s
tm

e
n

t, in
ve

s
to

r 
ta

x 
re

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ility, 
g
re

e
n
 

b
o
n
d

s, 
fra

c
k
in

g
, 

h
u
m

a
n
 

rig
h

ts
 

in
 

e
xtra

c
tive

s 
a

n
d
 

e
xe

cu
tive

 re
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
  

        
  

 



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e

p
o

rt | J
u

ly
 to

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 2

0
1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

a
g

e
 9

 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
  

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 

T
o

p
ic

s
  

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

G
le

n
c
o

re
  

C
a
rb

o
n
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t, b

o
a

rd
 d

ive
rs

ity
S

m
a
ll Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

T
e

x
tro

n
 

R
e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a

l risk
, h

u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

A
llia

n
t T

e
c
h

s
y
s
te

m
s
  

R
e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a
l risk

, h
u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
A

w
a

itin
g
 R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

L
-3

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
tio

n
s

 
R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a

l risk
, h

u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

G
e
n

e
ra

l D
y
n

a
m

ic
s

 
R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a
l risk

, h
u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
A

w
a

itin
g
 R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

L
o

c
k

h
e

e
d

 M
a
rtin

 
R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a

l risk
, h

u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

D
o

o
s
a
n

 
R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a
l risk

, h
u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
A

w
a

itin
g
 R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

H
a
n

w
h

a
 C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 
R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a

l risk
, h

u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
A

w
a

itin
g
 R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

S
in

g
a
p

o
re

 T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 R

e
p

u
ta

tio
n
a
l risk

, h
u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

H
a

ys
  

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

A
s
tra

ze
n
e

c
a
  

M
e
rg

e
rs

 a
n
d

 a
cq

u
isitio

n
s 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

B
A

E
 S

yste
m

s
  

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
, b

o
a
rd

 co
m

p
o
s
itio

n
 

M
o
d

e
ra

te
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

B
u

rb
e

rry G
ro

u
p
 

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

B
T

 G
ro

u
p
 

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

B
ritis

h
 L

a
n
d
 

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
, clim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

G
4
S

 
R

e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
, h

u
m

a
n
 rig

h
ts

 
M

o
d

e
ra

te
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

N
a

tio
n
a

l G
rid

 
C

a
rb

o
n
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

S
ve

n
s
ka

 H
a

n
d

e
lsb

a
n

ke
n
 

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

N
a

tio
n
a

l E
xp

re
ss

 
E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n

t sta
n
d

a
rd

s 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

V
o

d
a
fo

n
e
 

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
, ta

x 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

B
e
tfa

ir 
F

in
a

n
c
e
 &

 a
cco

u
n
tin

g
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

S
im

e
 D

a
rb

y
 

S
u

sta
in

a
b

le
 p

a
lm

 o
il 

S
u
b

s
ta

n
tia

l Im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 

K
u

a
la

 L
u

m
p

u
r B

e
rh

a
d

 
S

u
sta

in
a
b

le
 p

a
lm

 o
il  

S
u
b

s
ta

n
tia

l Im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 

A
s

ia
n

 A
g

ri R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

S
u

sta
in

a
b

le
 p

a
lm

 o
il 

S
u
b

s
ta

n
tia

l Im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 

IO
I G

ro
u

p
 

S
u

sta
in

a
b

le
 p

a
lm

 o
il 

S
u
b

s
ta

n
tia

l Im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 

N
o

va
rtis

 
H

o
ld

in
g
s B

a
s
e
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
D

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

T
o
ta

l 
C

a
rb

o
n
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t, fra

c
kin

g
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

D
e

u
ts

c
h
e

 T
e

le
ko

m
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n

t S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

S
e

ve
rn

 T
re

n
t 

R
e
m

u
n
e

ra
tio

n
 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

O
la

m
 

S
u

sta
in

a
b

le
 p

a
lm

 o
il 

D
ia

lo
g
u

e
 

 C
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s L
A

P
F

F
 h

a
s n

o
t p

re
vio

u
sly e

n
g
a

g
e
d

 w
ith

 in
d
ivid

u
a
lly a

re
 in

d
ic

a
te

d
 in

 b
o
ld

. 

 



 
 

Q
u

a
rte

rly
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t R
e
p

o
rt | J

u
ly

 to
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
0

1
4

 

©
 L

o
c
a

l A
u

th
o

rity P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
, 2

0
1
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 

1
0

 

L
o

c
a
l A

u
th

o
rity

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 F

o
ru

m
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

R
e
p

o
rt p

re
p
a

re
d
 b

y P
IR

C
 L

td
. fo

r th
e

 L
o
c
a
l A

u
th

o
rity P

e
n

sio
n

 F
u
n
d

 F
o
ru

m
 

 L
in

c
o
ln

s
h

ire
 C

C
 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

u
th

o
rity 

L
o
th

ia
n
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

M
e

rs
e
ys

id
e

 P
e

n
sio

n
 F

u
n
d

 

N
e

w
h

a
m

 L
B

 

N
o

rfo
lk P

e
n
sio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

N
o

rth
 E

a
st S

c
o
tla

n
d
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

N
o

rth
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ire

 C
C

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 

N
o

rth
a
m

p
to

n
s
h
ire

 C
C

 

N
IL

G
O

S
C

 

N
o

ttin
g
h

a
m

sh
ire

 C
C

 

R
h

o
n
d

d
a
 C

yn
o

n
 T

a
f 

S
h
e
ffie

ld
 C

ity R
e

g
io

n
 C

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

A
u
th

o
rity  

S
h
ro

p
sh

ire
 C

o
u

n
cil 

S
o
m

e
rs

e
t C

C
 

S
o
u

th
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ire

 P
e

n
sio

n
s
 A

u
th

o
rity 

S
o
u

th
w

a
rk

 L
B

 

S
ta

ffo
rd

sh
ire

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

S
u
rre

y C
C

 

T
e
e

s
sid

e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

T
o
w

e
r H

a
m

le
ts

 L
B

 

T
yn

e
 a

n
d

 W
e
a
r P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

W
a
lth

a
m

 F
o

re
s
t L

B
 

W
a
n
d

s
w

o
rth

 L
B

 

W
a
rw

ick
s
h
ire

 P
e

n
sio

n
 F

u
n
d

 

W
e
st M

id
la

n
d
s
 P

T
A

 P
e

n
sio

n
 F

u
n
d
 

W
e
st M

id
la

n
d
s
 P

e
n

sio
n
 F

u
n

d
 

W
e
st Y

o
rk

s
h
ire

 P
e

n
sio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

W
ilts

h
ire

 C
C

 

W
o
rce

ste
rs

h
ire

 C
C

 
 

A
v
o

n
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a
m

 L
B

 

B
e

d
fo

rd
s
h
ire

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

C
a
m

d
e

n
 L

B
 

C
h

e
sh

ire
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

C
ity o

f L
o

n
d

o
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 

C
lw

yd
 P

e
n
sio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

C
ro

yd
o

n
 L

B
 

C
u
m

b
ria

 P
e

n
sio

n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

D
e

rb
ys

h
ire

 C
C

 

D
e

v
o
n
 C

C
 

D
o

rs
e
t C

o
u

n
ty P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

D
yfe

d
 P

e
n

sio
n

 F
u
n

d
 

E
a
lin

g
 L

B
 

E
a

st R
id

in
g
 o

f Y
o

rk
s
h
ire

 C
o

u
n

cil 

E
a

st S
u
s
s
e

x P
e

n
sio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

E
n
fie

ld
 L

B
 

F
a
lk

irk
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
re

a
te

r G
w

e
n

t F
u
n

d
 

G
re

a
te

r M
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

G
re

e
n
w

ic
h
 P

e
n
sio

n
 F

u
n
d
 R

B
 

G
w

yn
e
d

d
 P

e
n

sio
n

 F
u

n
d
 

H
a

ck
n

e
y L

B
 

H
a
m

p
s
h

ire
 P

e
n

sio
n
 F

u
n
d
 

H
a

rin
g

e
y L

B
 

H
a

rro
w

 L
B

 

H
o

u
n
slo

w
 L

B
 

Is
lin

g
to

n
 L

B
 

L
a
n

c
a
s
h

ire
 C

o
u

n
ty  P

e
n

sio
n
 F

u
n
d
 

L
a
m

b
e

th
 L

B
 

L
e
w

is
h
a

m
 L

B
 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 9 September 2014
	4 Pension Fund  Investments as at 30 September 2014
	Item 4 - Portfolio of Investments

	7 Exempt Minutes of Meeting held on 9 September 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	8 Property - Confirmation of the action of the Director of Finance and Resources (exemption Paragraph 3)
	9 Private Equity - Review of position at 30 September 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	10a Economic and Market Update
	10b Review of Position as at 31 October 2014
	Strategic Benchmark Monitoring (021214 Agenda Item 10(b) Appendix 2)
	RCM Appendix 2 (021214 Agenda Item 10(b))

	11 Pension Fund Performance and Manager Monitoring for the quarter ended  30 September 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	12 Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible Investment Report Quarter 2 2014 (exemption paragraph 3)
	2014_Q3_LAPFF_Engagement_Report_Public (021214 Agenda Item 12)


